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The Council's financial performance for the year ended 31St March 2016 Is as set out In the Comprehenslve Income and Expenditure Statement and it's financial 
po51tlon Is as set out In the Balance Sheet and Cash Flow Statement. 

These financial statements have IH!en prepared In line with the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accountlnaln the United Klnadom for the year ended 31St March 
2016 (th11 Code) and thl! Department of the Envttonment Accounts Direction, Clfcular lG 04/2016. lt Is the purpose of this fori!WOrd to explain, In and easily 
undentandable way the financial facts In relation to the Council. 

This Statement of Accounts explains Belfast City Council's finances durlns the financial year 2015/16 and Its flnanclal position at the end of that ye~r. lt follows 
approved accountlns standards and Is necessarily technlulln parts. 

Group Accounts 

The Cod. requires Local Authorities to consider all their Interests and to prepare a full set of aroup financial statements where they have material Interests In 
subsldl11'-s, associates or joint ventures. Setfast City Council does not have material Interests In such bodies and accordlnaly Is not required to preparearoup financial 
statements. 

The Movement In Reserves Statement 

This Statl!ment, as set out on paae 26, shows the movement In the year on the dlff~trent rnerves held by the Council, an1lysed Into 'uDble reserves' (I.e. those thlt 
can be applied to fund expenditure or reduce locll taxatlon)lnd other reserves. The 'Surplus or (deficit) on the piO'ilslon of services' Nne shows the true economic 
cost of provldlna the CouncY's services, more detail$ of which are shown In the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. These are different from the 
statutory amounts required to be cha1Jed to the Generll Fund Sllance for Local Tax purposes. The 'Net Increase /Oer:rease before transfers to statutory and other 
reserves' Nne shows the statutory General Fund Balance before any discretionary transfers to or from statutory and other reserves undertlllten by the Council. 

The Comprehensive lnoome •nd ExJII!ndlture Statement 

This statement. as set out on pase 27, shows the accountlna cost In the year of provldlna services In accordance with aenerally accepted accountlns practices, rather 
than the amount to be funded from taxation. Councils raise taxation to cover expenditure In accordance with resulatlons; this may be different from the accountlna 
cost. The taxation position Is shown In the Movement In Reserves Statement. 

The Balance Sheet, as set out on paae 28, shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the Council's assets and liabilities. The net assets of the Council (assets less 
liabilities) are matched by the reserves held by the Council. Reserves are reported In two cateaorles. The flrst c;nesorv of reserves are usable reserves, I.e. those 
reserves that the Council may use to provkle services, subject to the need to maintain a prudent level of reserves and any statutory limitations on their use (for 
example the Capital Receipts Reserve that may only be used to fund capital expenditure or repay debt). The second catesorv of reserves are those thll the authority Is 
not able to use to provide services. This catesory of reserves Includes reserves that hold unreallsed aalns and losses (for example the Revaluation Reserve), where 
amounts would only become avallable to prcMde services If the assets are sold; and reserves that hold tlmlna differences shown In the Movement In Reserves 
Statl!mt!nt line 'Adjustments between accounttna ba51s and fundlna basis under resutatlons'. 

The CISh Flow Statement, as set out on paae 29, shows the chanaes In cash and cash equivalents of the Council durlna the reportlna petlod. The stat~tt~~ent shows how 
the Councllsenentes and uses cash and cash equivalents by classlfytna nsh ftows as operatlns, lnvestlna and flnanclna activities. The amount of net cash ftows arlslna 
from opentlnsactivttles Is a key Indicator of the extent to which the operations of the Council are funded by way of ta•atlon and arant Income or from the recipients 
of services provided by the Council. lnvestlna activities represent the extent to which cash outflows have been made for resourtes which are Intended to contribute to 
the Council's future service delivery. Cash flows arlslna from financing activities are useful In predlctlna claims on future cash flows by provldetS of capital (I.e. 
borrowlnal to the Council. 



Fl!IMICbll Report 

For the year ended 31 Match 2016, tile Coundl reduced llJ General Fund reserve by £2,86911: to £19.181k. The reduction In the General Fund Is M to costs that were 
commlttRCIIn prior years that were asreed to be funded from res~r~a In the year ended 31 Marth 2016. The Council's budcet of £148,2081t was supplemented by 
£774k for prior year flnaNsatlon payment of district rates. The CouncU reportRCI £778lc under budcet on service expenditure In yeu. The Costs of Services on 
ContlnulnJ Operations £17S,S141c, as reported In the Comprehensive Income and Expend tu re Statement, also Includes the accounttnc cost of provhf ne services In 
~tion to the amount to be funded from taxation. The total net Income reported In the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement Is £17,081k and Includes 
allocations of £7,038k to fund capital expenditure. 

For the 2015/16 year the Council had an authorised borrowln&llmlt of £140-Sm. This Is based on the Council's forecast capital expenditure plans over the medium to 
Ions term. In conjunction wlth the Council's cap; tal Ananclns Requirement of £62m, th's ensures that the Council only borrows for capital purposes. Durlna the year 
the Council repaid extemalloans of £3.9m. The Council borrowed £11m to fund onaolna cap' tal projects. At 31 March 2016, the total amount outstandlna on extl!rnal 
loans was £34.Bm, of this total £4.5m represents the outstandlna debt of the former Bttlfast Corporation Services wh'ch Is now the responslblllty of the Northern 
Ireland Housln1 Executive, and on whose behalf the Cound Is adminlstl!rlnl the loans. 

Expenditure on capital projects durln& the year amounted to £83m, the most sl1niHcant spend was on Belfast Waterfront Exhibition and Conference Centre £22.8m, 
Connswater Community Greenway £11.3m, Coundl Accommodation £11.2m, Innovation Centre £6.9m, Pitches Stratesv £6m, North Foreshore £5.8m, 
Olympia/Windsor Aeaeneratlon £5m and Glrdwood Hub £4.7m. 

Local Government Reform 

From 1 Aprll2015, under the Reform of Local Government, the number of Councils In Northern Ireland reduced from 26 exlstlnl to 11 new CouncUs, established under 
the Loc.l Government Act (Northern lr~~land) 19n as amended by the Local Government (Boundaries) Act (Northern Ireland) 2008. From that date the Northern 
Ireland Executive transferred some functions pn!Yiously carried out by NI Government Departments and save some new responsibilities to the 11 new Counols. 

Leisure Transformation Prosramme 

The Council Introduced a new leisure trust model which led to the establishment of Active Belfast Umlted. Greenwich Leisure Umlted [GLL), a char.table social 
enterprise, was appointed as a stntec:c operating partner to manaae the leisure facillt.es and Its operations from 1 January 2015 by Active Belfast Umlted and the 
Councl~ as a tri-partite lllreemRnt. Gllls warkin1 towards the delivery of annual operatlns savlnp to be reinvested back to the leisure estate and community. 

In September 2015 the Counctlsavl! permission to create a Council owned company to operate the Bttlfast Waterfront and Ulster Halls. Responsibility for manaainl 
the operations of the Waterfront and Ulster HaUs was transferred to the newly formed Belfast Waterfront and Ulster Hall Ltd (8WUH) company from 1 April 2016. 
BWUH Is worklns towards the dl!livery of annual operations savlnas to be rR!nvuted back to finance the cap'tal expenditure Incurred on the extension. 

The CouncU participates In the Northern Ireland Local Government Officers' Pension Fund administered by the Northern Ireland Local Government Officers' 
Superannuation Commlttee. Transactions rR!atlns to retirements benefits are Included In Note 20 to these Statement of Accounts. The Gas Pension Fund Is now 
consolidated wlthln the CouncN's Balance Sheet and the relevant disclosures are also Included In Note 20. 

As 1 result of Local Government Reform on 1st April 2015, staff transferred from Central Govemment to the Council are members of the Northern Ireland Ovll Service 
Pension Scheme. The Northern Ireland Ovil Service Pension arrangements are unfunded multi-employer defined benefit Khemes. Transactions relatlns to this 
scheme are diKiosed In Note 6e. 



Statement of the Council's and Chief flnllndal Offkef's kesponslbllltles fot the Sllltement of Acalunts 

The Council's knpanslbllltles 
Under Section 1 of the Local Government Rnance Act {Northern Ireland) 2011 a council shall m;ake arransements for the proper administration of Its financial affairs. A 
council sh;all deslsnate an officer of the council as Its chief financial offiCer and these arranaements shall be carried out under the supervision of Its thief financial officer. 

Under llesulatlon 7 of the Local Government {Accounts and Audit) Resulatlons (Northern Ireland) 2015 the Council, or a Committee, Is required by resolution, to approve the 
accounts. 

These accounts were approved by The Chief Flmmclal Officer on 23 September 2016. 

The Chl•f Flnandal Offlcer'sllespanslbllltles 
Under Rqulatlon 8 of the Local Government (Accounts and Audit) Resulatlons (Northern Ireland) 2015, the Chief Ananclal Officer Is responsible for the preparation of the 
Council's Statement of Accounts In the form directed by the Department of the Environment. 

The iiCCounts must &lve a true and fair view of the Income and upendlture and cash flows for the finar~tlal year and the financial position as at the end of the flnanclal year. 

In preparlnc this Statement of Accounts, the Chief R~lal officer Is requ'red to: 

• observe the Accounts Direction isst~ed by the Department of the Environment lncludins compllar~te with the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accountlnc 
In the United Klnadom 

• follow relevant accountln& and disclosure requirements and apply suitable accountlna policies on ;a consistent basis, and 

• make fudsements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent. 

The Chief Anar~tlal Officer Is also required to: 

• keep proper accountlns records that are up-to· date, and 

• take reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other lrrl!llularltles. 

,... 



Annual Governance Statement 2015/2016 

The Council's Annual Governance Statement (AGS) follows the guidance issued by DOE 

namely Circular LG 30/2015, DOE accounts directions and where applicable, the factsheet on 

governance statements issued by the NIAO in 2013, and comprises the following sections: 

• Scope of responsibility 

• The purpose of the governance framework 

• The governance framework 

• Review of effectiveness 

• Significant governance issues 

Scope of responsibility 

Belfast City Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in accordance 

with the law and proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded and properly 

accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and effectively. The Council also has a 

duty under Part 12 of the local Government Act (Northern Ireland) 2014 to make 

arrangements for continuous improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, 

having regard to a combination of strategic effectiveness, service quality, service availability, 

fairness, sustainability, efficiency and innovation. 

In discharging this overall responsibility, the Council is responsible for putting in place proper 

arrangements for the governance of its affairs and facilitating the effective exercise of its 

functions, which includes arrangements for the management of risk. 

The Council has prepared an Annual Governance Statement which is consistent with the 

principles of the CIPFA/SOLACE Framework Delivering Good Governance in Local 

Government. This statement explains how the Council has complied with the code and also 

meets the requirements of the local Government Accounts and Audit Regulations 

(Northern Ireland 2015) in relation to the publication of a statement on internal control. 
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The Purpose of the Governance Framework 

The governance framework comprises the systems and processes, and culture and values, by 

which the Council is directed and controlled and the activities through which it accounts to, 

engages with and leads its communities. lt enables the Council to monitor the achievement 

of its strategic objectives and to consider whether those objectives have led to the delivery 

of appropriate services and value for money. 

The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed to 

manage risk to a reasonable level. lt cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, 

aims and objectives and can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance 

of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to 

identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of the Council's policies, aims and 

objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should 

they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. 

The governance framework continues to be place at Belfast City Council for the year ending 

31st March 2016 and up to the date of approval of the Annual Governance Statement and 

statement of accounts. The following section sets out the key elements of the governance 

framework. 

The Governance Framework 

Following a review of its decision-making arrangements in March 2015, the council approved 

a new committee structure, which is based on the full council and five standing committees. 

The new structure is illustrated and described below. 

r.~ 
'· .. k 

1 '~- COuncil 

• I I I ..!. 

r' ;-

Strategic Policy City Growth·and Peop}eai'ld 
Pljnnlng Dcanms and Resources Regeneration' Communities 

commltteee co'rnm.ltteee Committee -~ttu Comm~ttae 
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Through the work of committees, our councillors oversee the work of the council. All 

committee decisions need to be ratified by the full council except where committees have 

been granted delegated authority to make decisions. 

The full council, which consists of all60 elected representatives, is the overarching decision­

making body. 

The Strategic Policy and Resources Committee is responsible for setting the strategic 

direction of the Council through the development of its corporate plan and other key 

corporate and cross cutting strategies and policies. lt will also ensure effective use of 

resources and value for money for ratepayers, and oversee the Council's relationship with a 

number of key agencies and partners. 

The City Growth and Regeneration Committee is responsible for the development and 

implementation of strategies, policies, programmes and projects directed to the 

regeneration and growth of the city in the context of the outcomes agreed in the community 

and corporate plans and other corporate strategy. 

The People and Communities Committee is responsible for the development and 

implementation of strategies, policies, programmes and projects aimed at improving life at a 

local level in the context of the outcomes agreed in the community and corporate plans and 

other corporate strategy. 

The Planning Committee is responsible for all of the Council's planning functions, except 

those matters which are delegated to officers or reserved to full Council. 

The Licensing Committee is responsible for the consideration of all matters pertaining to 

policy and legislation in relation to licensing issues. 

In addition to the Committees listed in the diagrams above there are a number of Working 

Groups established which include the Audit Panel, Budget and Transformation Panel and a 

number of Area Working Groups. 
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The Audit & Risk Panel provides an independent assurance on the adequacy of the Council's 

risk management framework and associated control environment. lt provides an 

independent scrutiny of the Council's financial and non-financial performance, which is 

relied upon by the Council, to the extent that it exposes it to risk and weakens the control 

environment. The Audit & Risk Panel met eight times during 2015/16. 

The Council's Code of Governance is based on the six core principles set out in the 

CIPFA/SOLACE Framework. How we meet these six core principles is reviewed and updated 

annually and a summary of the key elements of our governance framework are set out in the 

table below: 

-- -
- l, • - -

Focus on purpose and outcomes . . " · .. -~ .~~· ':" ;:-. ' .. . . 

We will do this through the following: 

• Community planning and the Belfast Agenda 
• Belfast City Centre Regeneration Strategy and Investment Plan 
• Local Development Plan 
• 'One Council' corporate communication guidelines 
• Corporate· complaints, comments and compliments procedure 
• Corporate and operational planning process 
• Focus on service delivery at a local level 
• Leisure transformation programme 
• Delivery of services through a partnership arrangements 

• Establishment of Council owned company to operate Belfast Waterfront Conference 
and Exhibition Centre and Ulster Hall 

• Investment programme 
• Performance management system 
• Annual financial report 

• Integrated financial planning 
• Strategic financial management framework 

• Efficiency programme and value for money work 
• Procurement policies, procedures and guidelines 

. ... . - -,..~ ~, ' . 
. Working together • 
r· .. .~- •'• " • r. • • .. 

We will do this through the following: 
• Our corporate values 
• Consultation and engagement work 
• Council constitution 
• Council Standing Orders 
• Scheme of Delegation 
• Financial regulations 

• Political governance structures 
• Committee and operational planning process 
• Committee reporting system 
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• Party Group briefings 
• Members remuneration scheme 
• Job descriptions 
• Terms and conditions of employment 

Promoting values of good governance 
' 

We will do this through the following: 
• Our corporate values 
• The Belfast Agenda 
• Standing orders 
• Rnancial regulations 
• Good relations plan 
• Equality scheme and action plan 
• Disability strategy and action plans 
• lesbian, Gay, Bisexual and Transgender AGtion Plan 
• Race Action Plan 
• Sustainable development action plan 
• Codes of conduct for members and offkers 
• Appraisal framework 
• Fraud and corruption and whistle blowing policies 
• Dedaratlons of interests Is a standing agenda item for committees and working 

groups 
• Register of Members Declarations and Gifts and Hospitality Register 
• Policy and guidance for officers on gifts and ho~pitality and conflicts of interest 
• Development of DPA I FOI policy framework 
• Govern!!!£tlrra1Jg4l!m!nts Witli P-artners 

Taking informed, transparent decisions and managing risk 

We will do this through the following: 
• Community planning and the Belfast Agenda 
• local ~velopment Plan 
• Council Constitution 
• Standing prders 
• Scheme of delegation 
• Political governance structures 
• Committee reporting system, including agenda setting and C!ommittee support 

frameworks 
• Onllne minutes system (modem.gov) 
• Performance management system 
• Audit and Risk Panel with an external independent member 
• Internal audit service 
• Risk man@gement framework 
• Quarterly Assurance Statements 
• Deveiopm~nt of Health and ~fety Assurance Framework 
• Budgetary control and reporting framework 
• Rnancial Regulations and accountlng manual 
• Business continuity management policy 
• Town Solicitor and legal Services 
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Developing capacity and capability 

We will do this through the following: 
• Member development programme (we became the first local authority to be 

awarded the Northern Ireland Charter for elected member development) 
• Development of a political skills framework 
• Elected member development working group 
• Organisational development programme 

• Personal development planning 
• Learning and development policy 

• Appraisal framework 

• Investors in people award 
• Performance management system 
• Recruitment and selection procedures 
• Corporate induction courses 

- ---

Community engagement and making accountability real 

We will do this through the following: 
• Community planning and the Belfast Agenda 

• Local Development Plan 
• Consultation and engagement work 
• Communication of corporate plan, capital programme and financial report 
• Strategic Performance Management Framework 
• Area Working Groups 

• Open council and committee meetings 
• Webcasts of Council meetings 
• Audio recordings of Committee meetings 
• Online minutes system {Modern.gov) 
• Our website and use of social media 

• 'My Belfast' app 
• Public surveys completed every 2 years 
• Corporate complaints, comments and compliments process 
• City Matters magazine 

• Negotiation and discussion with trade unions 
• Disability Support Network 
• Internal communications 

The Deputy Chief Executive and Director of Finance and Resources is the Council's 

designated Chief Financial Officer under the Local Government Finance Act {Northern 

Ireland) 2011, responsible for the proper administration of the Council's financial affairs. 

The Council's financial management arrangements conform to the governance requirements 

of the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Chief Financial Officer in Local Government (2010) 

as set out in the Application Note to Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: 

Framework. 
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The CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Head of Internal Audit (2010) sets out the five 

principles that define the core activities and behaviours that belong to the role of the Head 

of Internal Audit (HIA) in public service organisations and the organisational arrangements 

needed to support them. 

The Head of AGRS, and the supporting operational arrangements in place, conform to the 5 

principles set out in the CIPFA Statement. This is demonstrated through a self-assessment 

exercise undertaken by AGRS. While the principles state that the HIA should not be 

responsible for preparing the annual governance report, the arrangements within the 

Council, involve AGRS eo-coordinating the preparation of the Annual Governance Statement 

which is then reviewed and approved by the Corporate Management Team, Assurance 

Board, Audit and Risk Panel before being signed by the Chair of Strategic Policy & Resources, 

the Chief Executive and the Deputy Chief Executive and Director of Finance and Resources. 

Review of Effectiveness 

The following diagram illustrates the Assurance Framework in place that provides 

information on compliance with the various elements of the Council's Governance 

Framework, including performance reports, health and safety reports, finance reports, 

internal audit reports and risk management reports. 
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The various in year and year end reports arising from the Assurance Framework are 

reviewed and approved by the Audit and Risk Panel and Strategic Policy and Resources 

Committee annually. 

In addition, the review of the effectiveness of the Governance Framework is also informed 

by: 

• the annual review and update of the Code of Governance; 

• comments or recommendations made by the external auditors during their annual 

audit; and 

• the Head of Audit Governance and Risk Services (AGRS) annual assurance statement 

for the period ending 2015/16, which gives an opinion on the Council's risk and 

control environment. 

An extract from the Head of AGRS Annual Assurance Statement for the period ending 

2015/16 is given below: 

As Head of Audit, Governance and Risk Services (AGRS), on the basis of work carried out, I can 
provide a reasonable assurance regarding the adequacy and effectiveness of the Council's 
framework of governance, risk management and control. This opinion is based on the 
following: 

• evidence from audit assignments that areas subject to detailed internal audit during 2015115, 
in that AGRS has been able to provide positive statements of assurance 

• improvements in the implementation of audit recommendations, in particular in relation to 
financial control 

• application of risk management and quarterly management assurance processes 

• the evidence set out in the review of the Council's Code of Governance and Annual 
Governance Statement regarding the range of key assurance and governance arrangements 
that the Council has in place to direct I oversee its activities. 

Some weaknesses and areas for improvement have been identified through our audit work. 
These have been reported in detail to the Council's Assurance Board and Audit Panel during 
2015115 through our quarterly progress reports. 

With regard to risk management, a fundamental review of corporate risks has been 
undertaken by Chief Officers (late 2015 I early 2015). This has enabled production of a risk 
map I assessment and related action plans which reflect the Council's new responsibilities, 
key programmes of work as well as key 'business as usual' risks. This review should result in 
improved corporate risk management and, in particular, improved assurance reporting to 
Members through the Committee structures. Given the range of risks facing the Council, I 
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would highlight the importance of the implementation of agreed risk action plans arising 
from this review during 2016/17. 
Continued effort has been put into developing and implementing the key elements of an 

assurance framework within the Council with the key elements being: 

• a process whereby senior managers are required to sign annual assurance statements; 

• a process whereby Directors are required to sign quarterly assurance statements; 

• embedding risk management; 

• business planning and related performance reporting arrangements; 

• an Audit and Risk Panel; 

• a professional internal audit function, which has been reviewed for effectiveness against 

the CIPFA Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local Government; and 

• a Health & Safety Assurance Board. 

Significant Governance Issues 

The significant governance issues for 2015116 were identified through the review of the red 

risks in the Corporate Risk Register for the year ending 31 March 2016, consideration of 

significant events I issues and also review of the Directors' Annual Assurance Statements. 

The most significant issues for the Council are in relation to: 

1. New delivery I operating models 

2. Agreement and delivery of the Community Plan I Belfast Agenda 

3. City Centre Regeneration 

4. Waste management 

5. Change management 

6. Delivery of the Local Development Plan 

7. Delivery of the Leisure Estates Programme 

A description of the significant governance issues listed above is detailed on the following 

pages. 

1. New delivery I operating models 

The Council has entered into innovative new delivery I operating models since January 2015, 

namely the long-term agreement with Greenwich Leisure Ltd for the delivery of leisure 
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services and the contract with Belfast Waterfront & Ulster Hall Ltd for the operation of the 

new venue. There is a significant challenge for the Council to ensure that these contracts 

and relationships deliver the intended strategic outcomes. 

Regarding the new leisure operating model, it should be possible to reduce this risk in 

2016/17 following the appointment of a dedicated BCC Partnership Manager, the continued 

development and implementation of a monitoring framework, the development and 

implementation of an agreed approach to partnership relationship management and the full 

operation of Active Belfast Ltd. Similarly, regarding the new operating model for the BWUH 

Ltd, the risk will be managed through a review of the governance arrangements, 

development of a contract management plan and an agreed approach to relationship 

management along with performance monitoring and reporting. 

There are, of course, other economic and sector specific factors that could impact on the 

management of this risk. 

2. Agreement and delivery of the Community Plan I Belfast Agenda 

The Belfast Agenda I Community Plan will provide the strategic direction for other plans 

within the city, and in particular the Local Development Plan. Statutory guidance 

recommends the community plan is published by April 2017; missing this deadline would 

result in significant adverse publicity for the Council. The following actions have been 

agreed to manage the risk: 

• secure dedicated resources for the development and implementation of the Belfast 

agenda 

• establish appropriate governance structures and support for the community 

planning process 

• commission specific research and expert assistance to support the development of 

an action plan detailing SMART actions to ensure meaningful measures and targets 

are set and monitored 

• develop a performance framework to enable reporting on progress of the 

community plan/Belfast Agenda and key work strands. 

3. City Centre Regeneration 

There is a risk that we fail to deliver the City Centre Regeneration Strategy. The Strategy and 

related actions represent a new area of Council activity and there are related, inherent risks 

Page 15 



in undertaking investment activity. While there is a clear Strategy and a number of controls 

in place, there are considerable challenges to trying to achieve £1 billion of investment into 

the city. The following actions have been agreed to mitigate the risk: 

• establish permanent team to deliver strategy 

• establish programme governance board {and proposed risk I issue log) 

• develop CCIF procedures I governance i.e. management of the fund 

• ensure effective risk management in place to help manage programme and specific 

projects under the strategy. 

4. Waste Management 

The impact of cost rises on the Council would be potentially significant as would the financial 

penalties imposed on the Council as a consequence of failing to meet waste reduction 

targets. Resource issues in terms of people and fleet have been identified as internal risk 

factors. A number of external factors have also been identified, including the lack of an 

appropriate waste infrastructure and commodity price changes. A number of actions have 

been proposed in order to further mitigate the risk and these include, development of 

contingency arrangements in relation to residual waste treatment, commissioning of a value 

for money review of recycling centres, and development of a strategic waste plan 2017-

2030, as well as ongoing contract monitoring reviews. 

5. Change Management 

There is a significant governance issue around the need to align the organizational structure 

to the new priorities. The analysis from both the Peer review challenge process and the 

Decision Making Accountability work has been completed and together with the work on 

setting the strategic direction of the council will give us best practice, evidence-based 

options for an efficient and effective council structure with the capacity to maximise the 

benefit of the council's new powers and ambition. This includes a need to have a strategic 

approach to communications aligned to the corporate priorities. 

There is a significant corporate risk around the delivery of the Belfast Agenda I Community 

Plan if change is not managed effectively across the organization. A range of controls are in 

place and key actions to co-ordinate a programme of work have been implemented but 

work must be prioritized and resourced to ensure effective delivery. 

Page 16 



6. Delivery of the Local Development Plan 

The major risk in relation to the delivery of the Local Development Plan is that the Plan can 

be subject to challenge from a number of sources at a number of stages during the course of 

consultation. There are high expectations regarding the delivery of the LOP and there are 

also timing issues re the enquiry processes. There are a number of other factors that may 

impact on the council's ability to deliver the plan, including the resourcing and scheduling of 

appeals and availability of key statutory partners to support to the council's plan. The 

delivery of the plan is fundamental to the Belfast Agenda, however it is noteworthy that the 

existing plan, drafted by DOE, commenced in 2004 and has not been formally adopted, as it 

is currently subject to ongoing legal challenge. In order to mitigate the risk the council has 

appointed a Development Planning and Policy Manager and committed to providing the 

adequate resources to ensuring the Local Development Plan is delivered in accordance with 

legislative timeframes as agreed with DOE; these include the establishment of a Project 

team and steering group as well as a sinking fund to support the plan. 

7. Deliveryofthe Leisure Estates Programme 

A key issue for the Council will be the delivery of the £105 million capital investment 

programme in leisure. 

The impact is assessed as severe in terms of (a) Financial, in that if the programme is not 

properly managed and the costs are not controlled effectively then there will not be enough 

finance available to complete the whole programme and; (b)Political, in that the principles 

approved by members for the Leisure Transformation Programme may not be realised. The 

key action to manage this ris is the implementation of the Leisure Estate Corporate 

Programme. 

Chief Executive 

Signed: g·-~-r= .. ······-.................. -.......... . 
Chief Financial Officer 
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NORTHERN Ill !lAND LOCAL GOVERNM£HT IOOIES' 

REMUNERATION REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED U MARCH 2016 

INTRODUCT10H 

The Local Government (Accounts and Audit) Resulatlons (Northern lre!Mld) 2015 ntqulre lai'Jer loulaovernment bodies to prepare a remuneration report as part of 
the statement of accounts. 

AUOWANCE AND REMUNERATION ARRANGEMENTS 

COUNCIUORS 

Allowances are payable by councils to councillors and committee members under Part 3 of the local Government Finance Act (Northern Ireland) 2011 and The Local 
Government (Payments to Councillors) Rqulatlons (Northern Ireland) 2012, which ume Into operation on 1 April 2012. 

FollowlnJa review of lllowances, carried out by an Independent Councillors' Allowances Remuneration Panel, which was appointed In May 2013, the Minister of the 
Environment advised the Northern Ireland Auembly In a written statement of the new levels of allowances applicable for councillors from 1 April 2015. 

Gukl.lnc• and determlnatlons on Councillors' Allowances appl1tabie from 1 April 2015 were issued by the Department of the Environment on 24 February 2015 
(Orculars LG 04/2015 and LG 05/2015 respectively). The determlnatlons and rates have been updated In LG 29/2015 due to the Increase in Dependants' carer's 
Allowance from 1 October 2015. DetaWs of the allowances paid to Individual councWiors are published on councll websltes. 

FollowiRJ local elections on 22 May 2014, 462 councUiors were elected to the 11 new councils for a four year term. Belfast Oty Council had &0 councUiors In 2015/16. 

SENIOit EMPlOYnS 

The remuneration of senior employees employed by the Council is determined by the Council in line with that determined by the National Joint council (NJC) for Local 
Govttrnment Services. Senior staff are those staff who are members of the Executive Manasement Team/Senior Manasement Team. 

council appointments of employ~ are made In ~tcordance with the Lonl Government Staff Commlnlons' Code of Procedures on Recruitment and Selection, which 
requires appointment to be on merit and on the basis of fair and open competition. 

Unless otherwise stated below, the officials covered by this report hold appointments which are open·ended • 

.... 1. 



AUOWAHC!S PAID TO COUNCIUORS 

The total ~mount paid to Council Ion by way of allow~nces In 2015/16, un~ Part 3 of tM Local Government A~ nee Act (Northern Ireland) 2011 ~nd tM I.Dcal 
Government (Payments to Counclllon) Resu~tlom (Northern lrN!ld) 20U was: 

Tllble 1.: Total All-peld to c:oundllors In 2015/16 (audited lnfvnn•tlon) 

Allew~nce Total Allew~noes Number of Councillors_.,.. AllowMce 
£ 

I Basle Allowanc"' a.t9.617 611 
ISDKial •AIIowanc"' 103.749 27 
I Lord Mavor Allowanc"' U.BOO 1 
~O..outv Lord Mavor Allowance 6.2SO 1 
PCSP Allowance 13.5611 33 
Oth"'r Travel Allowance 15.715 27 
Emalover Cott• 221.946 

6.962 24 
Mil"'aae 11.670 311 
Cours.s/ 'VIsits 21.~9 30 

• rental 4.580 2: 
i Costs 2.267 7 

Hlorh SMrlfl's Allowance 6.249 1 
• Pavments 16.600 1" 

TOTAL 1.315.914 

• Severance payments shown above are made under the Local Government (Severance Payments to Councllors) RetU!atlons (NI) 2013 and are fully funded by the 
Nortllern Ireland Executive. 

Details of the allowances paid to Individual councillors In 2015/16 are published on the coUIICM webslte at 
www.belfattclty.aov.u't/councW/freedomofillformatlon/counclllorexpemes.aspx 

The followJnsls a summary of res~&nations, retirements and appointments of COUncNiors durlna 2015/16: 

Gavln Roblnson was excluded as Councillor on 9 May 2015 and Councillor Brlan Kennedy was eo-opted to replace him on 16 June 2015. Clalre Hanna was excluded as 
Councillor on 29 June 2015 and Councillor Donal Lyons was eo-opted to replace her on 28 July 2015. 

Laura McNamee reslaned as Councillor on 31 July 2015 and 5ian O'Nelll was eo-opted to replace her on 1 September 2015. Bill Groves rulaned as Councillor on 4 
September 2015 and Councillor S~anna Walsh was eo-opted to replace him on 14 September 2015. 

_ .. 



IIEMUNEIIATIOH OF SENIOfl EMPLOYEES (audited lnfonMtlon) 

The r.munentlon of senior employees covers the Executive Ma,..ement Tum/S.Oior Man11ement Team. The followi,. table provides details of the remuneration paid to 
senior employees 1n 2015/16: 

Offtcen 2015/1& 
S.iary (Ful year equlvllent loruaJ lleMflts lnldnd Ita Totli 

In bndtets where P..,ments nearest £100) 
appllable) 

£'000 
£'000 l'OOO £'000 

Chief Executive· Suzanne 120.125 12D-12S 
Wylle 

Director of Finance & 1011-105 100-105 
Resources • Ronan Creaan 

Director of Property & ProjectJ 1D0-105 1011-105 
- Gerry MIHar 

~rector of OraaniJational 95-100 95-100 
Development· .Nil Mlnne 

Olrector of Oty & 90-95 9D-95 
Neltlhbourhoocl Services· 

Nltlel Grlmshaw IFYE) 

·~rector of PlannlnJ & Place· 9D-9S 9D-95 
Phll Wlll!Mns (FYE) 

Town Solicitor · John WaiJh 85·90 85·90 

"The Director of Plannlna & Place Is employed under a flxed term contract for two years with the option to extend for 1 year. 

Councils are required to disclose the relulonshlp between the remuneration of the hlahest paid member of the Executive M1nasement Team/Senior Manaaement Team and 
the median remuneration of the Council's workforce. 

The banded remuneration of the highest paid member of the Executive Manasement Team/Senior Manasement Team In the financial year 2015/16 was £120k • £125k. This 
was 6.2 times the median remuneration of the workforce, which was £19,742. 

Table 3: Reletlonshlp betwHn the remuneration of the hlahest paid member of the Executive Manaaement Tu m/Senior Manaaement Team and the median 
remuneration of the CoundiJ worllforce 

2015/1& 
£'000 

Salary bind of hilliest paid member of the Executive ManJCement 120.125 
Team/ Senior Mlnllaement Team 

Median Total Remuneration 19.8 
RUio 6.2 

In 2015/16, no employees received remuneration In excess of the hlahest paid member of the Executive Ma~ement Team/Senior Manaaement Team. 

Total remuneration Includes sal1ry, bonus payments and benefits In kind. 

Sllllty 
"Salary" Includes arou salary, overtime, and any aralia payments 

lentftts In Kind 
The monetllry value of benefits In kind covers any benefits provided by the employer and tre"ed by HM Revenue and Customs as a taxable emolument 

--



bit "-Cbaes for st~ff 
The number of exit pacbtles provided to all staff by the Council durtna 2015/16, toatther wlth total cost pet band and total cost of the compulsOfV and other redundancies 
are set out In the table below: 

Teble C: Ealt PKI!aps In 2015/16 (euclltecllnfonmltlon) 

Seve~nce Pecbae Cast e-nd Number of Compulsory Number of Tot.! Number of Exit Total Cast of Pecbaes In eedl Cast e-nd 
Redund.ndes Other P.cbaes In each Cast £'000 

dep~~rtures land 

£0-£20.000 15 15 176 
£20.001 • £40.000 13 13 366 
£40.001· £60.000 9 9 417 
£60.001 • £80.000 3 1 192 
£80.001 • £100.000 

£100.001- £150.000 
£150.001. nnn nnn 

Tfthll 40 411 1.151 

Pension leneflts 

The Lot~! Government Pension Scheme !Northern Ireland) (the Scheme) which Is 1 funded defined benefit pension scheme, which provides retirement benefit$ for councU 
employees on a •career averace revalued earnlnp" biiSls from 1 April2015. Prior to that date beneflU were built up on a "final salary" basis. 

From 1 April2015, a member builds up retirement pension at the rate of 1/49th pensionable pay for each yew. Pension beneflu In relation to membership between 1 April 
2009 and 31 Mwch 2015 were built up at the rate of 1/601h pensionable pay for each yew of membership. there Is no automatic lump sum provided In respect of 
membership after 31 March 2009. Pension beneflts In relation to any membership before 1 April 2009 were built up at the rate of 1/IOth !pension) and l/80thS ltax·he 
lump sum) of pensionable pay for each year of membership up to 31 March 2009. At retirement. members may live up some pension for additional lump sum, subject to HM 
Revenue and Customs IHMRC) Amlu . The conversion rate Is £12 additional lump sum for every £1 of penslol\ liven up. 

Cour~clllors have been able to )oln the Scheme since May 2011. The Scheme application Is modified to reflect the fact that councillors hold an elected office. Councillor 
members have always accrued pension on a career averase basis. Prior to 1 April2015 pension was accrued at a rate of 1/601h and thereafter at 1 rate of 1/49th. 

lhe Scheme Is funded by contributions made by both employees/councillors and employers. Prior to 1 April 2009, a member's contribution rates were fixed at 6" of their 
pensionable remuneration I except for those who were entitled to contribute to the Scheme at 5" before 1 February 2003 and have remained In continuous employment). 
Tlered member contribution rates, determined by the whole-time equivalent rate of pay, were Introduced from 1 April 2009. From 1 April 2015, the member contribution 
rates are determined on the actual rate of pay. 

The nn1es for the b;~nds for tl•red contribution rates are revised by the Department of the Environment In April each year tn accordance with the Increase applied to a 
pension In payment. The bands, effective from 1 April2015, were as follows: 



Table 5: Employee Contribution Rates 

Band Ran1e Employee Contribution Rate 

1 £0-£14.000 §.§111C 
2 £14.001- £21.~00 SliD% 
l E2l.l01- £1§.600 &.c;mc. 

4 ns.&nt - Ul.ooo &.110% 
§ Ul.lllll- £11§.000 _B~ 

"' Mtv"' tha.. £1§ 000 10 c;mc. 

Employers' contribution rates are determined by the fund's actuary every thrte years at the triennial valuation. The 2013 trlennll! vlluatlon was undertaken 11 11 31 March 
2013 and an employer contribution rate of 20% for those employers whose putlclpatlon In the SCheme Is deemed to be Indefinite has been set for the followlns three years, 
effective from 1 Aprll2014: 

Table 6: Employer Contribu11on Rates 

Year Employer Contribution Ratlt 

1 AprW 2014 • 31 Marclt 2015 20% 

1 AprW 2015- 31 March 2016 20% 
1 Aprll2016- 31 March 2017 20% 

The Local Government Pension SCheme Resulatlons (Northern trelandl 2014 were made on 27 June 2014 and The Local Government Pension SCheme (Amendment and 
Transitional Provisions I Resulatlons (Northern Ireland) 2014 were made on 30 June 2014. Both sets of resulatlons are effective from 1 April 2015. 

Councillors hilve been ilble to join the SCheme since Mily 2011and therefore have not iltcrued slsnlficant benefits thus far. However, the In-year pension contributions made 
by the Council for all coundlors durlna201S/16 wils £175,718. 

The value of pension benefits of the most senior manasement of the Councll accrued durtns the year was as follows: 

T~ 7· Pension leneflts of teftlot staff In 2015/16 (aucllted Information) 
Offtcen Acaued Pension at lteallnaease In CETV at 31/J/16 C£TV at 31/3/15 Real Increase In CE1V 

pension 11e as at 31/3/16 pension and related 
lump sum at pension 

£'000 ale cooo cooo 
£'000 £'000 

Sunnne Wylle 45-50 7.5-10 723 652 61 
Ronan Cres.an 35-40 5·7.5 662 601 51 
r,..,.., MWiar ·~-1;11 §.7~ 1087 989 10'i 

Jln Mlnnt! 25-30 2.5-5 428 392 26 
Nlael Grlmshaw o-s 0.2.5 4 0 2 

PhllwtllllmS o-s 0.2.5 26 0 18 
JohoWal<h 'Ill-'!~ 17.§.70 §02 '17A ,,. 

The Cash Equivalent Tt11nsfw Value (CETVI 
This Is the actuarlally assessad capitalised value of the pension scheme benefits accrued by a member at a particular point In time. The benefits wlued are the member's 
accrued benefits and any c:ontlnsent spouse's pension PIYable from the scheme. 1t Is a payment made by a pension scheme or m..,aement to secure pension benefits In 
another pension scheme or arranaement when the member leaves a scheme and c:hooses to transfer the pension benefits they hive accrued In their former scheme. The 
pension fltlures shown relate to the benefits thlt the Individual has accrued as a consequence of thelr total membership of the pension scheme, not just their service In a 
senior capacity to which disclosure applies. CETVs are calcu"ted In ac:cordlnce with The Occ:upatlonal Pension SChemes (Tr~nsfer Values) (Amendrnt!ntl Resulatlons and do 
not take account of any actual or potentl.11 reduction to benefits resultlnl from Lifetime Allow..,ce Tax which may be due when pension benefits are taken. 

The real Increase In the val11e of the CETV 
This reflects the Increase In CETV efftctlvely funded by the employer. 11 takes ac:count of the lncr11se In accrued pension due to Inflation, contributions paid by the employee 
(lncludlna the wlue of any benefits transferred from another pentlon scheme or arranaementl and uses common market valuation factors for the start and end of the 
period. 
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Certificate of the Chief Flnalldal Officer 

1 certify that· 

(a) the Statement of Accounts for the year ended 3Ut Much 2016 on paaes 26 to 103 has been prepared In the form directed by the Department of the 
Environment and under the accountlns policies set out on paau 30 to 59. 

(b) In my opinion the Statement of Accounts slves a true and fair view of the Income and upendlture and cash news for the financial year and the financial 
position as at the end of the financial year en dins 3Ut March 2016. 

Coundl APJifOWI of Stlltement of Acmunts 

These accounts were approved by resolution of the Stnteslc Policy and Resources Committee on 23 September 2016. 

Chairman 

, ... 11 



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF BELFAST CITY COUNCIL 

I have audited the financial statements of Belfast City Council for the year ended 31 March 2016 under the 
Local Government (Northern Ireland) Order 2005. The financial statements comprise the Movement in 
Reserves Statement, Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, Balance Sheet, Cash Flow Statement 
and the related notes. The financial statements have been prepared under the accounting policies set out 
within them. I have also audited the information in the Remuneration Report that is described in that report as 
having been audited. 

This report is made solely to the Members of Belfast City Council in accordance with the Local Government 
(Northern Ireland) Order 2005 and for no other purpose, as specified in the Statement of Responsibilities. 

Respective responsibilities of the Chief Financial Officer and the independent auditor 

As explained more fully in the Statement of the Council's and Chief Financial Officer's Responsibilities, the 
Chief financial Officer is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that 
they give a true and fair view of the income and expenditure and cash flows for the financial year and the 
financial position as at the end of the financial year. My responsibility is to audit the financial statements in 
accordance with the local Government (Northern Ireland) Order 2005 and the local Government Code of 
Audit Practice. I conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). 
Those standards require me and my staff to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for 
Auditors. 

Scope of the audit of the financial statements 

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient 
to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether 
caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to 
Belfast City Council's circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by Belfast City Council; and the overall presentation 
of the financial statements. In addition I read all the financial and non-financial information in the Statement 
of Accounts to identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to identify any 
information that is apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge 
acquired by me in the course of performing the audit. If I become aware of any apparent material 
misstatements or inconsistencies I consider the Implications for my report. 

Opinion on financial statements 

In my opinion: 

• the financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with relevant legal and statutory 
requirements and the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 
2015-16, of the financial position of Belfast City Council as at 31 March 2016 and its income and 
expenditure for the year then ended; and 

• the financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Local Government 
(Accounts and Audit) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2015 and the Department for Communities 
(formerly Department of the Environment) directions issued thereunder. 

Opinion on other matters 

In my opinion: 

• the part of the Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with 
the Department for Communities directions made under the Local Government (Accounts and Audit) 
Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2015; and 
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• the information given in the Narrative Report for the financial year ended 31 March 2016 is consistent 
with the financial statements. 

Matters on which I report by exception 

I have nothing to report in respect of the following matters which I report to you if: 

• in my opinion: 

o the Annual Governance Statement: 

• does not renect compliance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting 
in the United Kingdom 2015-16; 

• does not comply with proper practices specified by the Department for 
Communities; 

• is misleading or inconsistent with other information I am aware of from my audit; or 

o adequate accounting records have not been kept; or 

o the statement of accounts and the part of the remuneration Report to be audited are not in 
agreement with the accounting records; or 

o I have not received all of the information and explanations I require for my audit, or 

• I issue a report in the public interest under Article 9 of the Local Government (Northern Ireland) 
Order 2005; or 

• I designate under Article 12 of the Local Government (Northern Ireland) Order 2005 any 
recommendation made to the Council; or 

• I exercise the other special powers of the auditor under Article 19 to 21 of the Local Government 
(Northern Ireland) Order 2005. 

Certificate 

I certify that I have completed the audit of accounts of Belfast City Council in accordance with the 
requirements of the Local Government (Northern Ireland) Order 2005 and the Local Government Code of 
Audit Practice. 

Louise Mason 
Local Government Auditor 
Northern Ireland Audit Office 
106 University Street 

Belfast 
BT71EU 

26 September 2016 
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Belfllst City Council 
Movement In Reserves Statement far the year ended 31 Mardl 2016 

This Statement shows the movement In the year on the different reserves held by the Counol, analysed Into 'usab:e reserves' II e. those that c1n be applied to fund 
expenditure or reduce local taxation) and other reserves. The 'Surplus or (deficit) on the provision of services' fine shows the true economic ~:ost of providing the 
Council's serv'ci!S, more details of which are shown In the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. These are different from the statutory amounts 
required to be charaed to the General Fund Balance for local Tax purposes. The 'Net Increase /Decrease before transfers to statutory and other reserves' line shows 
the statutory General Fund Balance before any discretionary transfers to or from statutory and other reservi!S undertaken by the Council. 

Note 

General Fund 
SUmmary 

£ 

OttlerFund 
Bllenoesand 

Reselves 

t 

T«al Usable 
Reserves 

E 

Totlll Un!IRble 
Reserves 

£ 

Totlll Caundl! 
Reserves 

--- - -

Bol.lncc " ' ,1t I April 2015 1~ 12 0<;() nJO 17 S91 981 1.24J.r.;; ~0.38;. 7:& 398 018 ~r;~ ~JB 97J.ISO 

per Opcll1nr. B.1f~1ncc Slwct Note 

Movement In reserves durtna 
the year 

Surplus/ (Deficit) on the 
17,080,585 17,080,585 17,080,585 

provlslon of servkes 

Other Comprehensive Income 46,220,358 46,220,358 
and Expenditure 
Total Comprehensive Income 

17,080,585 17,080,585 46,Z20,358 63,300,943 
and Expenditure 
Adjustments between 

(16,550,269) (3,500,000) (26,046) (20,076,315) 20,988,032 911,717 
accountlns basis & fundlna under 

Net ln~ase /(decrease) before 
tnlnsfel'$ to Statutory and other 530,316 (3,500,000) (26,046) (2,995,730) 67,208,390 64,212.660 
Reserves 

Transfers to I from Statutory and 
(3,665,045) 3,618,695 46,350 

Clther Reserves 

Clther movements 265,293 (31,354) 233,939 91,000 324,939 

lmrease I (decrease) In year (2.869,436) 17,341 20,304 (2,761,791) 67,199,390 64,537,599 

S,,lomc as ot 31 Morch 2016 19.1Bl.H4 27.fi79.322 1.263.369 48.123.925 465.B7.854 513.461.779 



Belfast City Coundl 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for the year ended 31 Mard\2016 

This statement shows the accounting cost In the year of provld ng services In accordance with generahy accepted accounting practices, rather than the amount to be 
funded from taxation. Councils raise taxation to cover expenditure In accordance with regulations; this may be different from the accounting cost. The taxation 
position Is shown In the Movement In Reserves Statement. 

Gross ExpenditUre Gross lncDme Net Cost 
Gross 

GrossiiiCDIIIe Nit Cost 
lixpedltlll'l! 

Servlc. £l!Pendltllre ~ £ ~ ! £ £ ! 
leisure and Recreational Services 2 86,668,706 (9,669,218) 76,999,488 
Environmental Services 2 69,198,058 (8,9SO,S45) 60,247,513 
Planning and Development 

2 26,572,728 (11,303,953) 15,268,775 
Services 
Highways and Transport Services 2 2,208,650 (2,192,260) 16,390 
DRM and Corporate 2 20,392,280 (1,024,276) 19,368,004 1,077,295 1,077,295 
Other Services 2 8,U2,541 {4,508,933) 3,613,608 

----

Cost of Serv•tes on Co ntonuu>t: 21; :62.96 3 (37.'-49.1 ss: l7~.S i l. 718 1,0 7 i.29'; 1.011.19~ . 
01Jcratton~ 

Other Operating Expenditure 

Flnandng and Investment 
Income and Exptmdlture 

Surplus or Deficit on 
Discontinued Operations 

7 

B 5,690,842 

125,870 

(9,190,683) (3,499,841) 

Net Operot•nr. Expenditure 218 '.179,675 (~6.83?.86&1 172.139 607 !.017 2~5 1.071 J9S . 

Taxation and Non·Speclflc Grant 
Income 

9 (189,220,392) (189,220,392) 

(Surplusi/DefiCII on the 216 9t9.67S (236,060. 2601 (:7,QSO.>aS) 1.071.29> !.017.29> . 
Provt!.tOr1 of St•rvlccs 

(Surplus)/Dentlt on revaluation 
11 (22,S66,358) 

of non-current assets 

Surplus/(Deflclt) arising on 
revaluation of available-for-sale 
financial assets 

Remeasurements of the Net 
20 (23,654,000) 

Oeflned Benefit (Asset} Uabllity 

--

Other Comprchens1vc (Income) ond Expend1turc (46,220.358) 

Tot,, I Cdmprcf>cns1ve {Income) ond Expcndoturc 163.300,943) . 



Belfast Oty Council 
Belli nee Sheet as at 31 Mtrdl2016 

The Balance Sheet shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the Council's assets and liabilities. The net assets of the Counol (asseu less 
liabilities) are matched by the reserves held by the Council. Reserves are reported In two catesones. The first category of reserves are usable 
reserves, I e. those reserves that the Coundl may use to provide services, subJect to the need to maintain a prudent level of reserves and any 
statutory limitations on their use (for example the Capital Receipts Reserve that may only be used to fund capital expenditure or repay debt). 
The second category of reserves are those that the authority Is not able to use to provide services. This category of reserves Includes reserves 
that hold unreallsed gains and losses (for example the Revaluation Reserve}, where amounts would only become available to provide services If 
the assets are sold; and reserves that hold tlmlns differences shown In the Movement In Reserves Statement line 'Adjustments between 
accounting basis and fund in& basis under regulations'. 

r~ ~ :e 31~t March 2016 31\t March 2015 

~ Ej 
Fixed Assets 11 618,434,227 
long Tenn Investments 
Investment In Assodates and 
Joint Ventures 
lon& Term Debtors lS 6,191,192 

Short Term Investments 
Inventories 14 296,504 
Short Tenn Debtors lS 26,739,301 402,490 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 25 31,705,507 
Assets Held for Sale 11 1,500,000 

~~~. · . ;..\'-~·, c. :J ,J • '. ~ 

Bank Overdraft 
Short Term Borrowlns 
Short Term Creditors 
Provisions 

16 
17 

18 
35,418,808 
6,303,800 

402,490 

(U~HE'll :AJILITH' : .'. r- : '- ;-. 

long Tenn Creditors 17 94,146 
Provisions lB 2,963,742 
lons Term Borrowing 16 34,761,509 
Other long Term Uabllitles 5,20 91,099,942 
Donated Assets Account 21 410,000 
Capital Grants Receipts In Advance 22 3S3,005 

- -

' lll ,'\')$t T •. L. .. ) ~ ·' 1 . ''I 

USABl£ RESERVES 
Capital Receipts Reserve 26 1,263,369 
Capital Grants Unapplied Account 26 0 
Capital Fund 26 25,475,756 
Leisure Mobilisation Fund 26 2,000,000 
Other Balances and Reserves 26 203,566 
General Fund 26 19,181,234 

UNUSABLE RESERVES 
Capital Adjustment Account 26 433,923,306 
Financial Instruments Adjustment Account 26 
Revaluation Reserve 26 123,817,218 
Available for Sale Flnandallnstruments Reserve 26 
Pensions Reserve 26 (91,099,942) 
Clpltal Receipts Deferred Account 26 
Accumulated Absences Account 26 (1,302,728) 
Landfin Regulations Reserve 26 
Provisions Discount Rate Reserve 26 

-

M : wo~•u 5BA6 1, 7 1~ . 



Belfast City Council 
Cash Flow Statement at 31 March 2016 

The Cash Flow Statement shows the chanses In cash and cash equ valenu of the Coundl durins the reporting period. The statement shows how 
the Councllsenerates and uses cash and cash equlva"enu by classifying cash flows as operat.nL lnvestlns and flnanclns activities. The amount 
of net cash flows arts' ng from operatlns activities is a key Indicator of the elCtent to which the operations of the Council are funded by way of 
taxation and srant income or from the reoplenu of services provided by the Council. Investing activities represent the elCtent to which cash 
outflows have been made for resources wh' ch are Intended to contribute to the Council's future service delivery. Cash flows arising from 
financing actlvlt es are useful In predlctins claims on future ush flows by providers of capital (I.e. borrowins) to the Council. 

Net Surplus on the provision of services 

Adjustment for non·cash movements 

Adjust for Items Included In the net surplus or deficit an the provision of services 
that are lnvest,nJ and flnancln& activities 

---

- £ 
17,080,585 

40,206,407 

(40,361,749) 

Net c;,s': f.ow<> from opera! nr. .l::tl\tat•cs 2S .6 Y2'~ i.'.tl 

Cash flows from Invest Ins Actlvlt es lS (38,420,257) 

Net Cash flows from Flnanclns Activities 25 7,062,251 

- -

Net 1netei1U~ or dC'CrL'.1Se 111 rilsh ;'111d C;"JSh cqulv<Jicnts ~~ ... -B2 J6J1 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the reporting period 
as per Opening Balance Sheet note 

24 46,138,270 

Cosh on<l cosh cqu.volcn" Jt the end of the rcpart,nr. periOd 31,705,507 · 



Belfast City Council 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016 

1 Accounting Policies 

a General Principles 

i) 

The Statement of Accounts summarises the Council's transactions for the 2015/16 
financial year and its position at the year-end of 31 March 2016. The Council is 

required to prepare an annual Statement of Accounts in a form directed by the 

Department of the Environment in accordance with regulations 3 (7) and (8) in the 

local Government (Accounts and Audit) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2015 in 

accordance with proper accounting practices. 

These practices primarily comprise the Code of Practice on local Authority 

Accounting in the United Kingdom 2015/16 and the Service Reporting Code of 

Practice 2015/16 (SeRCOP), supported by International Financial Reporting 

Standards (IFRS). The accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts 

is principally historical cost, modified by the revaluation of certain categories of 

non-current assets and financial instruments. 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Accruals of Income and Expenditure 

• Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the Council transfers the 

significant risks and rewards of ownership to the purchaser and it is probable that 

economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to 

the Council. 

- Revenue from the provision of services is recognised when the Council can 

measure reliably the percentage of completion of the transaction and it is probable 

that economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will 

flow to the Council. 

-Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed- where there is a 

gap between the date supplies are received and their consumption, they are 

carried as inventories on the Balance Sheet. 

- Expenses in relation to services received (including services provided by 

employees) are recorded as expenditure when the services are received rather 

than when payments are made. 
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- Interest payable on borrowings and receivable on investments is accounted for 
on the basis of the effective interest rate for the relevant financial instrument 

rather than the cash flows fixed or determined by the contract. 

-Where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been 
received or paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the 

Balance Sheet. Where it is doubtful that debts will be settled, the balance of 
debtors is written down and a charge made to revenue for the income that might 

not be collected. 

ii) Acquisitions 

As a result of the boundary change under local Government reform, Belfast City 

Council has acquired functions and services from lisburn City Council and 
Castlereagh Borough Council on 1st April2015. The assets and liabilities have been 
transferred at their carrying values as at the transfer date and the balances are 

reflected in the Opening Balance Sheet Note to the accounts (Note 24). 

Belfast City Council also acquired balances in respect of the transfer ofthe Planning 
Function from the Department of the Environment and Off-Street Parking from the 
Department of Regional Development on 1st April2015. The assets and liabilities 

associated with the functions were transferred through absorption accounting and 
the carrying value of the assets and liabilities were brought into the financial 
statements of Belfast City Council from 1 April2015. 

The non-current assets which transferred to Belfast City Council on 1 April2015 

following Reform of Local Government were recognised initially within the same 

asset classification as that of the transferer organisation. After initial recognition, 

all such assets were assessed and reclassified where appropriate in line with Belfast 

City Council accounting policies. 
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iii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions 
repayable without penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents 
are investments that mature in six months or less from the date of acquisition and 
that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of 
change in value. In the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents are shown 
net of bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of 
the Council's cash management. Bank overdrafts are shown within current 
liabilities on the balance sheet. 

iv) Contingent Assets 

A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a 
possible asset whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or 
otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Council. 
Contingent assets are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note 
to the accounts where it is probable that there will be an inflow of economic 
benefits or service potential. 
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v) Contingent Liabilities 

A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a 
possible obligation whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or 
otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Council. 
Contingent liabilities also arise in circumstances where a provision would otherwise 
be made but either it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required 
or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured reliably. Contingent liabilities 
are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the accounts. 

vi) Employee Benefits 

Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the 
year-end. They include such benefits as wages and salaries, paid annual leave and 
paid sick leave, bonuses and non-monetary benefits (e.g. cars) for current 
employees, and are recognised as an expense in the year in which employees 
render service to the Council. An accrual is made for the cost of holiday 
entitlements earned by employees but not taken before the year-end and which 
employees can carry forward into the next financial year. 

Termination benefits 

Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Council 
to terminate an officer's employment before the normal retirement date or an 
officer's decision to accept voluntary redundancy and are charged on an accruals 
basis to the Non Distributed Costs line in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement at the earlier of: 
a) when the offer cannot be withdrawn or 
b) when the related restructuring costs are incurred. 

Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory 
provisions require the General Fund balance to be charged with the amount 
payable by the Council to the pension fund or pensioner in the year, not the 
amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In the 
Movement in Reserves Statement, appropriations are required to and from the 

Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for pension 
enhancement termination benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid 
to the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid at 
the year-end. 
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Post Employment Benefits 

The majority of employees of the Council are members of the Northern Ireland 

Local Government Officers' Pension Fund administered by the Northern Ireland 
Local Government Officers' Superannuation Committee. The scheme provides 

defined benefits to members (retirement lump sums and pensions), earned as 
employees worked for the Council. 

As a result of Local Government Reform on 1st April2015, staff transferred from 
Central Government to the Council are members of the Northern Ireland Civil 

Service Pension Scheme. The Northern Ireland Civil Service Pension arrangements 

are unfunded multi-employer defined benefit schemes but the Department of the 
Environment is unable to identify its share ofthe underlying assets and liabilities. 
The most up to date actuarial valuation was carried out as at 31 March 2012. This 

valuation is then reviewed by the Scheme Actuary and updated to reflect current 

conditions and rolled forward to the reporting date of the DFP Superannuation and 

Other Allowances Resource Accounts as at 31 March 2016. 

The Northern Ireland Local Government Officers' Pension Fund 

The Northern Ireland Local Government Officers' Pension Fund is accounted for as 
a defined benefits scheme. 

The liabilities of the Northern Ireland local Government Officers' Pension Fund 
attributable to the Council are included in the Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis 

using the projected unit method - i.e. an assessment of the future payments that 
will be made in relation to retirement benefits earned to date by employees, based 

on assumptions about mortality rates, employee turnover rates, etc, and 
projections of projected earnings for current employees. 

liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using a discount rate of 

3.4%. A discount rate is required to be set equal to the current rate of return on an 

AA Rated (or equivalent) corporate bond "of equivalent currency and term to the 

scheme liabilities". The discount rate is based on the AON Hewitt GBP Select AA 

Curve using the duration of the Council's liability. 

The assets of the Northern Ireland Local Government Officers' pension fund 

attributable to the Council are included in the Balance Sheet at their fair value: 

quoted securities- current bid price 

unquoted securities- professional estimate 

property- market value 
unitised securities- current bid price 

The change in the net pensions liability Is analysed into seven components: 
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Within the Cost of Services 

Current Service Cost - the increase in the present value of the defined benefit 

obligation (liabilities) resulting from employee service in the current period. 

Past Service Cost - (where applicable) the change in the present value of the 
defined benefit obligation for employee service in prior periods, resulting from a 

plan amendment (the introduction or withdraw! of, or changes to, a defined 

benefit plan) or a curtailment (a significant reduction in the number of employees 
covered by the plan). 

Any Gains or Losses on Settlement- (where applicable) arising where a council 
enters into a transaction that eliminates all further legal or constructive obligations 

for part or all of the benefits provided under a defined benefit plan. 

Within Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure 

Net Interest on the Net Defined Benefit Liability (Asset) -the change in the net 
defined benefit liability (asset) that arises from the passage oftime. 

Within Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure (Remeasurements) 

The Return on Plan Assets- excluding amounts recognised in the Net Interest on 

the Net Defined Benefit Liability (Asset). This Includes interest, dividends and other 
income derived from the plan assets, together with realised and unrealised gains or 
losses on the plan assets, less any costs of managing plan assets, and any tax 

payable by the plan itself other than tax included in the actuarial assumptions used 
to measure the present value of the defined benefit obligation. 

Actuarial Gains and Losses- changes in the present value of the defined benefit 
obligation resulting from: a) experience adjustments (the effects of differences 

between the previous actuarial assumptions and what has actually occurred) and 
b) the effects of changes in actuarial assumptions. 

Any change in the Effect of the Asset Ceiling - (where applicable) excluding 

amounts included in the Net Interest on the Net Defined Benefit Liability (Asset). 

Within the Movement in Reserves Statement Appropriations 

Contributions by Scheme Participants- the increase in scheme liabilities and assets 
due to payments into the scheme by employees (where increased contribution 

increases pension due to the employee in the future). 

Contributions by the Employer- the increase in scheme assets due to payments 
into the scheme by the employer. 
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In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund 
balance to be charged with the amount payable by the Council to the pension fund 
or directly to pensioners in the year, not the amount calculated according to the 
relevant accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, 
appropriations are made to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional 
debits and credits for retirement benefits and replace them with debits for the 
cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but 
unpaid at the year-end. The negative balance that arises on the Pensions Reserve 
thereby measures the beneficial impact to the General Fund of being required to 
account for retirement benefits on the basis of cash flows rather than as benefits 
are earned by employees. 

Discretionary Benefits 

The Council also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement 
benefits in the event of early retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a 
result of an award to any member of staff are accrued in the year of the decision to 
make the award and accounted for using the same policies that are applied to the 
Northern Ireland local Government Officers' pension fund. 
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vii) Events After the Balance Sheet Date 

Events after the balance sheet date are those events, both favourable and 
unfavourable, that occur between the end of the reporting period and the date 

when the Statement of Accounts is authorised for issue. Two types of events can 
be identified: 

a. those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the 
reporting period -the Statement of Accounts is adjusted to reflect such events 

b. those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period -
the Statement of Accounts is not adjusted to reflect such events, but where a 
category of events would have a material effect disclosure is made in the notes of 
the nature of the events and their estimated financial effect. 

The financial statements may subsequently be adjusted up to the date when they 
are authorised for issue. This date will be recorded on the financial statements and 
is usually the date the local Government Auditor issues his certificate and opinion. 
Where material adjustments are made in this period they will be disclosed. 

viii) Exceptionalltems 

When items of income and expense are material, their nature and amount is 
disclosed separately, either on the face of the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement or in the notes to the accounts, depending on how 
significant the items are to an understanding of the Council's financial 
performance. 
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be) Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates and 
Errors 

Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or 
to correct a material error. Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for 
prospectively, i.e., in the current and future years affected by the change and do 
not give rise to a prior period adjustment. 

Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting 
practices or the change provides more reliable or relevant information about the 
effect of transactions, other events and conditions on the Council's financial 
position or financial performance. Where a change is made, it is applied 
retrospectively by adjusting opening balances and comparative amounts for the 
prior period as if the new policy had always been applied. 

Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by 

amending opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period. 

x) Flnanciallnstruments 

Most financial instruments held by Councils would fall to be classified into just one 
class of financial liability and two classes of financial assets: 

Financial liabilities 
Amortised Cost 

Financial Assets 
loans and Receivables 
Available for Sale 

Financial liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes 
a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially 
measured at fair value and are carried at their amortised cost. Annual charges to 
the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement for interest payable are based on the carrying 
amount of the liability, multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the 

instrument. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated 
future cash payments over the life of the instrument to the amount at which it was 
originally recognised. 

For most of the borrowings that the Council has, this means that the amount 
presented in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal repayable (plus accrued 
interest); and interest charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement is the amount payable for the year according to the loan agreement. 
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Gains and losses on the repurchase or early settlement of borrowing are credited 
and debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the year of 
repurchase/settlement. However, where repurchase has taken place as part of a 
restructuring of the loan portfolio that involves the modification or exchange of 
existing instruments, the premium or discount is respectively deducted from or 

added to the amortised cost of the new or modified loan and the write·down to 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is spread over the life of 
the loan by an adjustment to the effective interest rate. 

Where premiums and discounts have been charged to the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement, regulations allow the impact on the General Fund 
Balance to be spread over future years. The Council has a policy of spreading the 
gain or loss over the term that was remaining on the loan against which the 
premium was payable or discount receivable when it was repaid. The 
reconciliation of amounts charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement to the net charge required against the District Fund Balance is managed 
by a transfer to or from the Financial Instruments Adjustment Account in the 
Movement in Reserves Statement. 

Financial Assets 

Financial assets are classified into two types: 

a. loans and receivables- assets that have fixed or determinable payments but are 
not quoted in an active market 

b. available·for·sale assets- that have a quoted market price and/or do not have 
fixed or determinable payments. 
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Loans and Receivables 

Loans and receivables are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council 
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are 
initially measured at fair value. They are then measured at their amortised cost. 
Annual credits to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest receivable are 
based on the carrying amount of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of 
interest for the instrument. For most of the loans that the Council has made, this 
means that the amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal 
receivable (plus accrued interest) and interest credited to the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement is the amount receivable for the year in the 
loan agreement. 

Where assets are identified as impaired because of a likelihood arising from a past 
event that payments due under the contract will not be made, the asset is written 
down and a charge made to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure 
line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The impairment 
loss is measured as the difference between the carrying amount and the present 
value of the revised future cash flows discounted at the asset's original effective 
interest rate. 

Any gains and losses that arise on the de-recognition of an asset are credited or 
debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

Available-for-Sale Assets 

Available-for-sale assets are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council 
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are 
initially measured and carried at fair value. Where the asset has fixed or 
determinable payments, annual credits to the Financing and Investment Income 
and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for 

interest receivable are based on the amortised cost of the asset multiplied by the 
effective rate of interest for the instrument. Where there are no fixed or 
determinable payments, income (e.g., dividends) is credited to the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement when it becomes receivable by the Council. 

Assets are maintained in the Balance Sheet at fair value. Values are based on the 
following principles: 

a. instruments with quoted market prices- the market price 

b. other instruments with fixed and determinable payments- discounted cash 
flow analysis 

c. equity shares with no quoted market prices- independent appraisal of company 

valuations. 
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Changes in fair value are balanced by an entry in the Available-for-Sale Reserve and 
the gain/loss is recognised in the Surplus or Deficit on Revaluation of Available-for­
Sale Financial Assets. The exception is where impairment losses have been 
incurred - these are debited to the Financing and Investment Income and 
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, along 
with any net gain or loss for the asset accumulated in the Available-for-Sale 
Reserve. 

Where assets are identified as impaired because of a likelihood arising from a past 
event that payments due under the contract will not be made (fixed or 
determinable payments) or fair value falls below cost, the asset is written down 
and a charge made to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line 
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. If the asset has fixed or 
determinable payments, the impairment loss is measured as the difference 
between the carrying amount and the present value of the revised future cash 
flows discounted at the asset's original effective interest rate. Otherwise, the 
impairment loss is measured as any shortfall of fair value against the acquisition 
cost of the instrument (net of any principal repayment and amortisation). 

Any gains and losses that arise on the de-recognition of the asset are credited or 
debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, along with any accumulated 
gains or losses previously recognised in the Available-for-Sale Reserve. 

Where fair value cannot be measured reliably, the instrument is carried at cost 
(less any impairment losses). 
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xi) Foreign Currency Translation 

Where the Council has entered into a transaction denominated in a foreign 
currency, the transaction is converted into sterling at the exchange rate applicable 
on the date the transaction was effective. Where amounts in foreign currency are 
outstanding at the year-end, they are reconverted at the spot exchange rate at 31 
March. Resulting gains or losses are recognised in the Financing and Investment 
Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement. 

xii) Government Grants and Contributions 

Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants and 
third party contributions and donations are recognised as due to the Council when 
there is reasonable assurance that: 

a. the Council will comply with the conditions attached to the payments, and 
b. the grants or contributions will be received. 

Amounts recognised as due are not credited to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement until conditions attaching to the grant or contribution have 
been satisfied. Conditions are stipulations that specify that the future economic 
benefits or service potential embodied in the asset acquired using the grant or 
contribution are required to be consumed by the recipient as specified or future 
economic benefits or service potential must be returned to the transferer. 

Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been 
satisfied are carried in the Balance Sheet as creditors. When conditions are 
satisfied, the grant or contribution is credited to the relevant service line 
(attributable revenue grants and contributions) or Taxation and Non-Specific Grant 
Income (non-ring-fenced revenue grants and all capital grants) in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement, they are reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in 
Reserves Statement. Where the grant has yet to be used to finance capital 
expenditure, it is posted to the Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve. Where it has 
been applied, it is posted to the Capital Adjustment Account. Amounts in the 
Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment 
Account once they have been applied to fund capital expenditure. 
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xiii} Intangible Assets 

Expenditure on non-monetary assets that do not have physical substance but are 
controlled by the Council as a result of past events (e.g. software licences) is 
capitalised when it is expected that future economic benefits or service potential 
will flow from the intangible asset to the Council. 

Internally generated assets are capitalised where it is demonstrable that the 
project is technically feasible and is intended to be completed (with adequate 
resources being available) and the Council will be able to generate future economic 
benefits or deliver service potential by being able to sell or use the asset. 
Expenditure is capitalised where it can be measured reliably as attributable to the 
asset and restricted to that incurred during the development phase (research 
expenditure is not capitalised}. 

Expenditure on the development of websites is not capitalised if the website is 
solely or primarily intended to promote or advertise the Council's goods or 

services. 

Intangible assets are measured initially at cost. Amounts are only revalued where 

the fair value of the assets held by the Council can be determined by reference to 
an active market. In practice, no intangible asset held by the Council meets this 
criterion, and they are therefore carried at amortised cost. The depreciable 
amount of an intangible asset is amortised over its useful life to the relevant 
service lines in Cost of Services on Continuing Operations in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement. An asset is tested for impairment whenever 
there is an indication that the asset might be impaired- any losses recognised are 
posted to the relevant service lines in Cost of Services on Continuing Operations in 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Any gain or loss arising on 
the disposal or abandonment of an intangible asset is posted to the Other 
Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement. 

Where expenditure on intangible assets qualifies as capital expenditure for 
statutory purposes, amortisation, impairment losses and disposal gains and losses 
are not permitted to have an impact on the General Fund Balance. The gains and 
losses are therefore reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in 
Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account and (for any 
sale proceeds greater than £Sk) the Capital Receipts Reserve. 
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xiv) Inventories & Long Term Contracts 

Inventories are included in the Balance Sheet at the lower of cost and net 
realisable value. The cost of inventories is assigned using the First In First Out 
(FIFO) basis as recommended by International Accounting Standard 2 Inventories 
(IAS2). 

long Term contracts are accounted for on the basis of charging the surplus or 
deficit on the provision of services with the value of works and services received 
under the contract during the financial year. 

xv) Investment Property 

Investment properties are those that are used solely to earn rentals and/or for 
capital appreciation. The definition is not met if the property is used in any way to 
facilitate the delivery of services or production of goods or is held for sale. 

Investment properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair value, 
based on the amount at which the asset could be exchanged between 
knowledgeable parties at arm's length. Investment properties are not depreciated 
but are revalued annually according to market conditions at the year-end. Gains 
and losses on revaluation are posted to the Financing and Investment Income and 
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The 
same treatment is applied to gains and losses on disposal. 

Rentals received in relation to investment properties are credited to the Financing 
and Investment Income line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement and result in a gain for the General Fund Balance. However, revaluation 
and disposal gains and losses are not permitted by statutory arrangements to have 
an impact on the General Fund Balance. The gains and losses are therefore 

reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement 
and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account and the Capital Receipts Reserve. 
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xvi) Landflll Allowance Scheme 

The landfill Allowances Scheme operates under the landfill Allowances Scheme 
(Northern Ireland} Regulations 2005. local Authorities are allocated annual target 

figures for the maximum amount of biodegradable municipal waste that can be 

sent to landfill but there are no tradable allowances. lt is not a 'cap and trade' 
scheme since landfill allowances are not tradable. For this reason, landfill 
allowances are not recognised as assets on the Balance Sheet. 

xvii) leases 

leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer 
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the property from 

the lessor to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases. 

Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land and buildings elements are 

considered separately for classification. 

Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right to use 
an asset in return for payment are accounted for under this policy where fulfilment 
of the arrangement is dependent on the use of specific assets 

The Council as lessee - Finance lease 

Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases is recognised on the 

Balance Sheet at the commencement of the lease at its fair value measured at the 
lease's inception (or the present value of the minimum lease payments, if lower). 

The asset recognised is matched by a liability for the obligation to pay the lessor. 

Initial direct costs of the Council are added to the carrying amount of the asset. 

Premiums paid on entry into a lease are applied to writing down the lease liability. 

Contingent rents are charged as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred. 

lease payments are apportioned between: 

a. a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property - applied to write 
down the lease liability, and 

b. a finance charge (debited to the Financing and Investment Income and 

Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement) 

Property, Plant and Equipment recognised under finance leases is accounted for 

using the policies applied generally to such assets, subject to depreciation being 
charged over the lease term if this is shorter than the asset's estimated useful life. 
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The Council is not required to raise district rates to cover depreciation or 
revaluation and impairment losses arising on leased assets. Instead, a prudent 
annual provision is made from revenue towards the deemed capital investment in 

accordance with statutory requirements. Depreciation and impairment losses are 

therefore replaced by a revenue provision in the General Fund Balance, by way of 
an adjusting transaction with the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in 

Reserves Statement for the difference between the two. 

Operating Leases: 

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement as an expense of the services benefiting from use of the 
leased property, plant or equipment. Charges are made on a straight·line basis 

over the life of the lease, even if this does not match the pattern of payments je.g., 

there is a rent·free period at the commencement of the lease). 

The Council as Lessor- Finance Lease 

Where the Council grants a finance lease over a property or an item of plant or 
equipment, the relevant asset is written out of the Balance Sheet as a disposa I. At 

the commencement of the lease, the carrying amount of the asset in the Balance 
Sheet (whether Property, Plant and Equipment or Assets Held for Sale} is written 

off to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal. A gain, representing 

the Council's net investment in the lease, is credited to the same line in the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement also as part of the gain or loss 

on disposal (i.e. netted off against the carrying value of the asset at the time of 
disposal), matched by a lease asset (long term debtor} in the Balance Sheet. 

lease rentals receivable are apportioned between: 

a. a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property - applied to write 

down the lease asset (long term debtor) together with any premiums received, and 

b. finance income (credited to the Financing and Investment income and 
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement). 
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The gain credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on 

disposal is not permitted by statute to increase the General Fund Balance and will 
be required to be treated as a capital receipt. Where a premium has been 
received, this is posted out of the General Fund Balance to the Capital Receipts 
Reserve in the Movement in Reserves Statement. Where the amount due in 
relation to the lease asset is to be settled by the payment of rentals in future 

financial years, this is posted out of the General Fund Balance to the Deferred 
Capital Receipts Reserve in the Movement in Reserves Statement. When the 

future rentals are paid, the element for the charge for the acquisition of the 
interest in the property is used to write down the lease asset (debtor). At this 
point, the deferred capital receipts are transferred to the Capital Receipts Reserve. 

The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of 
fixed assets is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing. 
Amounts are therefore appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account from the 
General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 

The Council as Lessor- Operating Lease 

Where the Council grants an operating lease over a property or an item of plant or 
equipment, the asset is retained in the Balance Sheet. Rental income is credited to 

the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement. Credits are made on a straight-line basis over the life of 

the lease, even if this does not match the pattern of payments (e.g., there is a 
premium paid at the commencement of the lease). Initial direct costs incurred in 

negotiating and arranging the lease are added to the carrying amount of the 
relevant asset and charged as an expense over the lease term on the same basis as 
rental income. 

xviii) Disposals and Non-Current Assets Held for Sale 

When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered 
principally through a sale transaction rather than through its continuing use, it is 
reclassified as an Asset Held for Sale. The asset is revalued immediately before 
reclassification and then carried at the lower of this amount and fair value less 
costs to sell. Where there is a subsequent decrease to fair value less costs to sell, 
the loss is posted to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement. Gains in fair value are recognised only up to 
the amount of any previously recognised losses. Depreciation is not charged on 
Assets Held for Sale. 

If assets no longer meet the criteria to be classified as Held for Sale, they are 
reclassified back to non-current assets and valued at the lower of its carrying 
amount before they were classified as Held for Sale: adjusted for depreciation, 
amortisation or revaluations that would have been recognised had they not been 

classified as Held for Sale, and their recoverable amount at the date of the decision 
not to sell. 
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Assets that are to be decommissioned i.e. abandoned or scrapped are not 

reclassified as Assets Held for Sale. 

When an asset is disposed of, or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset 

in the Balance Sheet (whether Property, Plant and Equipment or Assets Held for 
Sale) is written off to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive 

Income and Expenditure Statement as part ofthe gain or loss on disposal. Receipts 

from disposals (if any) are credited to the same line in the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement also as part of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e. netted 
off against the carrying value of the asset at the time of disposal). Any revaluation 

gains accumulated for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve are transferred to the 
Capital Adjustment Account. 

Amounts greater than £5k received for a disposal are categorised as capital 

receipts and credited to the Capital Receipts Reserve. Receipts are appropriated to 
the Reserve from the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves 

Statement. 

The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against district rates, as the cost 
of fixed assets is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital 

financing. Amounts are appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account from the 

General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 
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xix) Overheads and Support Services 

The costs of overheads and support services are charged to those that benefit from 
the supply or service in accordance with the costing principles of the CIPFA Service 

Reporting Code of Practice 2015/16 {SeRCOP). The total absorption costing 
principle is used - the full cost of overheads and support services are shared 
between users in proportion to the benefits received, with the exception of: 

a. Corporate and Democratic Core- costs relating to the Council's status as a multi­
functional, democratic organisation. 

b. Non Distributed Costs- the cost of discretionary benefits awarded to employees 
retiring early and any depreciation and impairment losses chargeable on non­
operational properties. 

These two cost categories are defined in SeRCOP and accounted for as separate 
headings in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement , as part of Net 
Expenditure on Continuing Services. 

xx) Property, Plant and Equipment 

Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or 
supply of goods or services, for rental to others of for administrative purposes and 
that are expected to be used during more than one financial year are classified as 
Property, Plant and Equipment. 

Recognition 

Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of Property, Plant and 
Equipment is capitalised on an accruals basis, provided that it is probable that the 
future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to 
the Council and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Expenditure that 
maintains but does not add to an asset's potential to deliver future economic 
benefits or service potential {i.e., repairs and maintenance) is charged as an 
expense when it is incurred. The Council applies a de-minimus level of £25k to 

Plant & Machinery, Information Technology Equipment, Fixtures and Fittings, and 
Office Equipment, meaning only assets over £2Sk are capitalised. Subsequent 

capital expenditure is only capitalised where it provided an enhancement to the 
economic benefits of the asset in excess of those previously assessed. 
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Measurement 

Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising: 

a. the purchase price 
b. any costs attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition 

necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management 
c. the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and 

restoring the site on which it is located 

The Council does not capitalise borrowing costs incurred whilst assets are under 

construction. 

The cost of assets acquired other than by purchase is deemed to be its fair value, 

unless the acquisition will not increase the cash flows of the Council. In the latter 
case, where the asset is acquired via an exchange, the cost of the acquisition is the 

carrying amount of the asset given up by the Council. 

Donated assets are measured initially at fair value. The difference between fair 

value and any consideration paid is credited to the Taxation and Non-Specific Grant 
Income line of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, unless the 

donation has been made conditionally. Until conditions are satisfied, the gain is 
held in the Donated Assets Account. Where gains are credited to the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, they are reversed out of the 
General Fund Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in 

Reserves Statement. 

Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement 

bases: 

-infrastructure and assets under construction- depreciated historical cost 

-community assets- at a nominal value as advised by the Independent Chartered 

Surveyor 

-short life assets, including road vehicles, plant and equipment, fixtures and 

fittings, office equipment, and IT and IS equipment depreciated historic cost as an 

estimate of fair value 
-surplus assets- fair value (at highest and best use) 

-investment properties are measured initially at cost and susequently at fair value 
as outlined in accounting policy note (xv) 
-all other assets- service potental (current value) 

Where there is no market-based evidence of fair value because of the specialist 
nature of an asset, depreciated replacement cost is used as an estimate of fair 

value. 
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Valuation 

The Council operates a rolling programme for the revaluation of land and Buildings 
with approximately 25% of these being revalued by physical inspection each year 

and the remainder being revalued by a desktop exercise. Increases in valuations 
are matched by credits to the Revaluation Reserve to recognise unrealised gains. 

Exceptionally, gains might be credited to the Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement where they arise from the reversal of a loss previously 
charged to a service. 

The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2007 

only, the date of its formal implementation. Gains arising before that date have 
been consolidated into the Capital Adjustment Account. 

Impairment 

Assets are assessed at each year-end as to whether there is any indication that an 

asset may be impaired. Where indications exist and any possible differences are 
estimated to be material, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and, 
where this is less than the carrying amount of the asset, an impairment loss is 

recognised for the shortfall. 

Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for by: 

a. where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation 

Reserve, the carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up 

to the amount of the accumulated gains), with any excess charged to the service 

line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
b. where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve, the carrying amount of 

the asset is written down against the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive 

Income and Expenditure Statement. 

Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the 
relevant service line(s} in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, 

up to the amount of the original loss, adjusted for depreciation that would have 
been charged if the loss had not been recognised. 

The same accounting treatment is applied to revaluation losses as a result of a 
general fall in asset prices across the board as opposed to a consumption of 

economic: benefit specific: to an asset as is in the case of impairment losses. 
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Depreciation 

Depreciation is provided for on all Property, Plant and Equipment assets by the 
systematic allocation of their depreciable amounts over their useful lives. An 

exception is made for assets without a determinable finite useful life (i.e., freehold 
land and certain Community Assets) and assets that are not yet available for use 

(i.e., assets under construction). 

Deprecation is charged on a straight-line basis on the following classes of tangible 

asset: 

- buildings, installation and fittings are depreciated on their fair value over the 
estimated remaining lives of those assets as advised by the Independent Chartered 
Surveyors. Depending on the type of building, installation or fitting the maximum 
useful life will be a range up to 60 years. 

- infrastructure assets, short-life assets, including road vehicles, plant and 
equipment, fixtures and fittings, office equipment, and IT and IS equipment over 
their estimated useful lives. 

Intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful 
lives. 
Depreciation is calculated on the following bases: 

-straight-line allocation of the estimated useful lives 
-depreciation is charged in the month of capitalisation but not in the month of 

disposal 

Componentisation 

Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment asset has major components 

whose cost is significant in relation to the total cost of the item, the components 
are depreciated separately. 

Componentisation is only applicable to larger value land and buildings or 

equipment assets. The Council applies the following de-minimis levels in relation 
to componentisation: 

-a component should be valued separately if it is greater than or equal to 3% of 
the total value of the asset and 

-the individual compenent has a valuation of greater than or equal to £300k. 

Revaluations 

Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference 

between current value depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that 
would have been chargeable based on their historical cost being transferred each 

year from the Revaluation Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account. 
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xxi) Heritage Assets 

Heritage Assets are assets with historical, artistic, scientific, technological, 

geophysical or environmental qualities that are held and maintained principally for 
their contribution to knowledge and culture. 

Heritage Assets are those assets that are intended to be preserved in trust for 
future generations because of their cultural, environmental or historic associations, 
they would be held by this authority in pursuit of our overall objectives in relation 
to the maintenance of heritage. 

The Council's collection of Heritage Assets (Works of Art and Civic Items) is 
reported in the balance sheet at insurance valuation, which is based on market 
values, or if it is not possible to obtain a valuation, they are maintained at historical 
cost less any depreciation, amortisation or impairment losses. These insurance 
valuations based on market values are updated on a periodic basis. Summary 
information on Heritage Assets has been provided for transactions in 2014/15 and 
2015/16 financial years. Detailed Information relating to transactions has not been 

included for prior years as it would not be practical to do so and there is little value 
added for the users ofthe accounts. 

xxil) Doubtful Debts 

A review of debt recoverability is undertaken at year end to determine the level of 
doubtful debts and an impairment loss is recognised in respect of specific debts 
where recoverability is uncertain. 
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xxiii) Provisions 

Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Council a legal 
or constructive obligation that probably requires settlement by a transfer of 
economic benefits or service potential, and a reliable estimate can be made of the 
amount of the obligation. For instance, the Council may be involved in a court case 
that could eventually result in the making of a settlement or the payment of 
compensation. 

Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate service line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the year that the Council 
becomes aware of the obligation, and measured at the best estimate at the 
balance sheet date of the expenditure required to settle the obligation, taking into 
account relevant risks and uncertainties. 

When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried in 
the Balance Sheet. Estimated settlements are reviewed at the end of each financial 
year - where it becomes less than probable that a transfer of economic benefits 
will now be required (or a lower settlement than anticipated is made), the 
provision is reversed and credited back to the relevant service. 

Where some or all of the payment required to settle a provision is expected to be 
recovered from another party (e.g. from an insurance claim), this is only recognised 
as income for the relevant service if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will 
be received if the Council settles the obligation. 

xxiv) Reserves 

The Council sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to 
cover contingencies. Reserves are created by appropriating amounts out of the 
General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. When expenditure 
to be financed from a reserve is incurred, it is charged to the appropriate service in 
that year against the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services In the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The reserve is then 
appropriated back into the General Fund Balance in the Movement In Reserves 
Statement so that there is no net charge against District Rates for the expenditure. 

Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for non-current 
assets, financial instruments and retirement benefits and do not represent usable 
resources for the Council- these reserves are explained in the relevant note to the 
accounts. 
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xxv) Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assets 

Charges to revenue for non-current assets e.g. services, support services and 
trading accounts are debited with the following amounts to record the cost of 
holding fixed assets during the year: 

a. depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service 
b. revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the service where there are 
no accumulated gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which the losses can be 
written off 
c. amortisation of intangible fixed assets attributable to the service. 

The Council is not required to raise District Rates to cover depreciation, revaluation 
and impairment losses or amortisations. However, it is required to make an annual 
provision from revenue to contribute towards the reduction in Its overall 
borrowing requirement [equal to either an amount calculated on a prudent basis 
determined by the Council in accordance with statutory guidance]. Depreciation, 
revaluation and impairment losses and amortisations are therefore replaced by 
minimum revenue provision [MRP] in the General Fund Balance, by way of an 
adjusting transaction with the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in 
Reserves Statement for the difference between the two. 

xxvi) Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute 

Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory 
provisions but that does not result in the creation of a non-current asset has been 
charged as expenditure to the relevant service in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement in the year. Where the Council has determined to meet the 
cost of this expenditure from existing capital resources or by borrowing, a transfer 
in the Movement in Reserves Statement from the General Fund Balance to the 

Capital Adjustment Account then reverses out the amounts charged, so that there 
is no impact on the level of District Rates. 

xxvii) Value Added Tax 

All expenditure and income, irrespective of whether it is revenue or capital in 
nature, is shown net of Value Added Tax, unless it is irrecoverable. 
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xxviii) The carbon Reduction Commitment Scheme (CRC) 

The Council is required to participate in the Carbon Reduction Commitment Energy 
Efficiency Scheme. The Council is required to purchase and surrender allowances, 
currently retrospectively, on the basis of emissions, i.e. carbon dioxide produced as 
energy is used. As carbon dioxide is produced (i.e. as energy is used), a liability and 
an expense are recognised. The liability will be discharged by surrendering 
allowances. The liability is measured at the best estimate of the expenditure 
required to meet the obligation, normally at the current market price of the 
number of allowances required to meet the liability at the reporting date. The cost 

to the Council is recognised and reported in the costs of the Councils services and is 
apportioned to services on the basis of energy consumption. 

xxix) Landfill Exploration and Evaluation 

The Council considers the facts and circumstances to determine whether an 
exploration and evaluation asset should be recognised in respect of the landfill site 
including assessment of the amount, timing and certainty of future cash flows 
under !FRS 6. The Council's landfill site produces gas to generate electricity and the 
income from this electricity generation is reducing year · on year due to 
environmental and other uncontrollable variables. The income for 2015/16 is 
£974k which is before deduction of relevant expenses, resulting in net income of 
£262k. The Council does not recognise any asset in respect of this gas production 
as any forecasting or estimating of future income is uncertain. The Council cannot 
reliably measure or value such an asset under IAS 38. 
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xxx) Fair Value Measurement 

The Council measures some of its non-financial assets such as surplus assets and 
investment properties at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value is the price 

that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value 

measurement assumes that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability 
takes place either: 

a) in the principal market for the asset or liability, or 
b) in the absence of a principal market, In the most advantageous market for the 
asset or liability. 

The Council measures the fair value of an asset or liability using the assumptions 
that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming 
that market participants act in their economic best interest. When measuring the 
fair value of a non-financial asset, the authority takes into account a market 
participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest 
and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset 
in its highest and best use. The Council uses valuation techniques that are 
appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data is available, 
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of 
unobservable inputs. 

Inputs to the valuation techniques in respect of assets and liabilities for which fair 
value is measured or disclosed in the authority's financial statements are 
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, as follows: 
• level 1 - quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or 
liabilities that 
the authority can access at the measurement date 
• level 2 - inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are 
observable for 
the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly 
• level3- unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. 
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b Accounting Standards That Have Been Issued but Have Not Yet Been Adopted 

Amendments to IAS 19 Employee Benefits (Defined Benefit Plans: Employee 

Contributions) 

In November 2013 the IASB issued its amendments to IAS 19. CIPFA/LASAAC 
considered the options in the standard for accounting for employee contributions 

are concluded that if the amount ofthe contributions is independent of the years 

of service a council is permitted to recognise such contributions as a reduction to 
service cost in the period in which the related service is rendered. This is consistent 

with the approach currently adopted and therefore there will not be any significant 
change in accounting practice for the council. 

Annual Improvements to IFRS 2010- 2012 Cycle and 2012- 2014 Cycle 

The IASB carries out cyclical work to identify and implement improvements in 

IFRS's. The 2010- 2012 cycle was issued in November 2013 and the 2012- 2014 
cycle was issued in December 2013. These amendments have not yet been 

endorsed by the European Union and this endorsement would be required to be 

adopted into the Code. There are no significant issues affecting the council 
emanating from the annual improvements work. 

Amendment to IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements (Accounting for Acquisitions of 
Interests in Joint Operations) 

When the acquisition of an interest in a joint operation in which the joint operation 
constitutes a business, as defined by IFRS 3, it shall apply, all of the principles on 

business combinations accounting in IFRS 3 and disclose the information required. 

This is applicable to the acquisition of both the initial interest and additional 
interests in a joint operation in which the activity of the joint operation constitutes 
a business. The exception of the principles that conflict with guidance in IFRS 11. 

Amendment to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and IAS 38 Intangible Assets 
(Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation) 
These changes apply to local authorities though CIPFA/LASAAC considers that local 

authorities do not use the depreciation and amortisation methods prohibited by 

the amendments to the standard. This amendment clarifies the treatment as it is 

the IASB's view that the restatement of the accumulated depreciation is not always 

proportionate to the change in the gross carrying amount. The amendment sets 
out that the gross carrying amount is adjusted in a manner that is consistent with 

the revaluation of the carrying amount. 

Amendment to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements (Disclosure Initiative) 

Under the IASB Disclosure Initiative, in December 2014 changes were published on 
IAS 1 Financial Statements. The presentation of financial statements has amended 

the reporting requirements for the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement and Movement in Reserves Statement. Improvements in the 
presentation of the financial statements will take effect in 2016/17 Code. 
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c Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies 

In applying accounting policies set out from la above the Council has had to make 
certain judgements about complex transactions or those involving uncertainty 
about future events. The critical judgements made in the Statement of Accounts 
are: 

Landflll Provision 

The calculation of the necessary financial provision for the capping and aftercare 
costs for the landfill site depends on a judgement around the appropriate discount 
rate to be used and the number of years over which these costs need to be 
provided. The landfill provision figures are sensitive to the assumptions used. 

d Assumptions Made About the Future and Other Major Sources of Estimation 
Uncertainty 

(i} Pension Liability 

Estimation of the net liability to pay pensions depends on a number of complex 
judgements relating to the discount rate used, the rate at which salaries are 
projected to increase, changes in retirement ages, mortality rates and expected 
returns on pension fund assets. A firm of consulting actuaries is engaged to 
provide the Council with expert advice about the assumptions to be applied. The 
pension figures disclosed in these financial statements are sensitive to the 
assumptions used. 

The approximate impact of changing key assumptions on the present value of the 
funded defined benefit obligation as at 31 March 2016 and the projected service 
cost for the year ending 31 March 2017 is set out in Note 20. 
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Belfast City Council 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
FOR THE Y£AR ENDED 31 MAR012016 

2 Se1111ental Reporting 
a Se1111ental Reporting Analysis 

The analysis of Income and expenditure by service on the face of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement Is specified by the Service 
Reporting Code of Practice. The sesmental reporting notes within the financial statements are based on the summary first page of the General Fund­
Service Income and Expenditure Analysis In the Department of Environment's Atcounts Direction. 

The General Fund-Service Income and Expenditure Analysis as pri!Sented to the Department of Environment Is as folloW$: 

-- -

z:ns; lG 2CJ0:/1", 

Culture and Herltase 
Recreation and Sport 
Tourism 
Community Services 

~ ~ncllblre Gr'Ds;s liiCome Net Elqlendltur_! G!§!s Emndll!re 
t ~ ~ £ 

9,390,665 
62,670,317 
8,213,779 
6,393,945 

(2,256,402) 
(4,757,714} 
(2,325,427} 

(329,675) 

7,134,263 
57,912,603 
5,888,352 
6,064,270 

GnaaiMOine 
£ 

- - -

LeiSLHe tJnd Rccn~.ltiOilal Scrv•(C~ Sh 06Ji ;p(, '9 l,t~'J 2!ff 7G '11} ~SB 

Cemetery, Cremation & Mortuary 3,663,313 (2,460,163) 1,203,150 
Environmental Health 16,982,652 (2,236,523} 14,746,129 
Flood Defence and und Drainase 
Public Conveniences 347,522 (488) 347,034 
Ucenslng 1,005,177 (250,978) 7S4,199 
Other aeanlng 16,447,588 (172,260) 16,275,328 
Waste Collection 20,548,461 (3,825,158) 16,723,303 
Waste Disposal 10,203,345 (4,975) 10,198,370 
Other Community Assets 
Minor Works 

- -

frH/IrOnmcntat Scrvu:::rs ~~ :"lS v,s $ i'::) .. ,-1;: r 'z.-:.J 3!1 . 

Community Plannln11 698,581 698,581 
Economic Development 12,326,007 (4,260,955) 8,065,052 
EU Rural Development 
Urban Reseneratlon and Community 
Development 5,805,529 (1,787,754~ 4,017,775 
Plannlns Policy 
Development Control 3,249,996 (2,286,611} 963,385 
Building Control 4,492,615 (2,968,633) 1,523,982 
Environmental initiatives 

-

P :'J't'1ln(: ;"l rd Devciopmt'nt Serv,cc~ 26,577,728 (l!,3~H.953) 1'... ZLS,/7~ -

Off-street ParklnJI Services 2,208,650 (2,192,260} 16,390 

- - -

lftr,l1w.1y> and Tronsport Serv10es 2.203,6>0 (2. 192.260) l6 J?:) · • 

Democratic Representation and 
Management 
Corporate Management 

5,499,873 
14,89~,407 

(21,325) 
(1,002,951) 

- -

5,478,548 
13,889,456 

888,076 
189,219 

888,076 
189,219 

DRM oncl rorpor,1t" Management 2·J 3?1 160 {I C;>.: 1 16) I~ l&!i 00~ ; Oll.l'J> 1 [11; 19S 

Trading Services 
Non Distributed Costs 
Central Services to the Public 

4,424,244 
1,596,185 
2,102,112 

(3,448,308) 
160,000 

(1,220,625) 

975,936 
1,756,185 

881,487 

-

Other ServiCeS 8.122.541 (4,503.933) 3.613,&08 • • 

-

CONTINUING OPERATIONS 213.162.961 (11.649. 185) 175,513.778 : 071 29> 1 Coli ]•JS 



b Recondllatlon to Net Cost of Servkl!sln the Comprehensive tn~oml! and Expenditure Statement 

This recondliatlon shows how the figures In the analysis of portfolio Income and e~pendlture relate to the amounts Included In the Comprehensive 

Income and E~pend tu re Statement 

Net Cost of Servkes In Servke Analysis 

Items excluded fram Servke Analysis: 

Add amounts not reported In Service Analysis but lnduded In Net Cost of 
Services In the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

Remove amounts reported In Service Analysis but not lnd uded In Net Cost 
of Services In the Comprehensive Income and Expenditurl! Statement 

175,513,778 

Cost of Scnnces on ront1nuini! Opcr.lt1ons Ill the -

ComprehenSIVe Income and f)(pendttllrc St~ltcmcnt li'S Si3,7i'S -

Items Included In Net Ope111tlng Expenditure excluded fram Servke 

Analysis: 

Other Operating E~pendlture 

Financing and Investment Income and E~pendlture 

Surp Ius or Deficit on Discontinued Operations 

Net Opcr.1tlf'IC E~~:pcnrtlturc per t~1c C ornprcl1cnstvc Income 

125,870 

(3,499,841) 

(3,373,971) 

~nd E•pcndtturc Statement !72,139,807 -

P~elil 



3 Adjustment between an AccounttnsBasls and Fundlns Basis under Resulatlons 
a Amounts Included In tile Comprehensive Income and Ellpendlture Statement but required by statute to be excluded when determlnlns the 

Movement on the General Fund Balance for the year: 

-- -

ZOi!o/16 20lS/iG 20lll/ JS 201-l/15 

Nota £ _f. £ 
Amounts lnduded In the Comprehensive ln_co_m_e_a_nd"":"'!Ex~pe-nd~ltu-re.:.:S:;:ta~te~ment but required bV statute to be excluded when determlnln-1-:th:-e---&o 

b 

Movement on the General Fund Balance for the year: 

Impairments (losses & reversals) of non-current assets 

Derecosnitlon (other than disposal) of non·current assets 

Revaluation lncreases/deaeases taken to Surplus/Deficit on 
the Provision of Services 

Depreciation char sed In the year on non-current assets 

Net Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute 

Carrying amount of non current assets sold 

Proceeds from the sale of PP&E, Investment property and 
lntilnslble assets 
Difference between finance costs cakulated on an accountlns 
basis and finance costs calculated In accordance with 
statutory requirements 

Net charges milde for retirement benefits In accordance wtth 
IAS 19 

Direct revenue financing of Capital Expenditure 

Capital Grants and Donated Assets Receivable and AppRed In 
year 

Capital Grants Receivable and Unapplied In year 

Rates Claw·Back Reserve 

Adjustments In relation to Short·term compensated absences 

Adjustments In relation to Lessor Arran1ements 

Landflll Resulatlons Reserve Adjustment 

Provisions Discount Rate Reserve Adjustment 

Amounts not Included In the Comprehensive lnmme and 
Ellpendlture Statement but required by statute to be 
lnc:luded when determining the Movement on the General 
Fund Balance for the year 

Statutory Provision for the financing of Capital Investment 

Employers contributions payable to the NILGOSC and 
retirement benefits payable direct to pensioners 

{1,014,809) 

11 20,859 

11 16,369,138 

11 11,697,623 27,072,811 

11 

7 198,655 

25,26 (n,78S) 125,870 

26 

20 19,831,000 

12,26 (7,038,503) 

9b (40,288,964) 

9c 

26 

17 40,580 

46,350 

26 

26 

26 (2,886,413) 

20 (13,453,000) 

- - -

Net tr~nsrcrs to I from Accunnd.1tcrJ Ahsemes-

AdJUStments u1 rc1.1tton to Short term compcns.ated 

oh ~~nrc~ 116,550,2691 -

Net tr~nsfcr~ (to)/lrorn 5tJtutory and other c.1rmarkcd - -

reserves 201'i/16 2015/16 2'0!~/!~ ]0!4/1'> 

Notes I ' ' Capital Fund 
Interest 
From Capital 
Other 26 (1,418,027} (1,418,027) 
IJ!I$ure MobiiiHtlon Fund 
Interest 
Other 26 (2,000,000) (2,000,000) 
Capital Receipts Reserve 
Interest 
Other 26 
Other Funds and earmarked reserves 
Interest (668) 
from Other funds 
Other 26 (200,000) (200,668) 

(3,618,695) 
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4 Cost of Services on Contlnulnl Operations 

a General Power of Competence 

Prior to loa! Government Reform on 1st AprU 2015, expenditure for special purposes was llm!ted under Section 40 of the local Government Rnance Act 
(Northern Ireland) 2011. This section was repealed by Schedule 10 of the local Government Act (Northern Ire and) 2014. 

Under Section 79 of the local Government Act (Northern Ireland) 2014, the Council has the power to do anythlnJ that Individuals senerally may do. 
Counclls have the power to do this with or without char1e. The power of competence Is not limited to bl!nefittln1 the area or Its residents nor Is lt 
limited by exlstln& powers. 

No expenditure has been Incurred In the year under the new 'seneral power of competence' provtslons of s79 of the 2014 Act. 

b External Audit ~es 

The Council has iiCtrued the followlnl costs relatlns to the ilnnuill audit of the Statement of Accounts. 

2015/16 2014/15 

• I 
Externill Audit Fees 80000 . 
Grant Claim Certification Fei!S . . 
Other Fees . . 

- -- --- -
80,000 

There were no other fees payable In respect of any other services provided by the appointed auditor over and above those described above. 
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Qp(:r,l~lllP, ,Hl( I Ill t'l(C: P <St'~ 

(OIHlr I ,11, l •".'>0 

a I Finance laMs (COUncil ii lessor) 

The Council has leased out property to a local bank on a finance lease with a remaining term of 63 years. 

The present value of lease payments receivable under the finance lease arrangements Is recognised as a recl!lvable and Included In both short and long 
term debtors. The difference between the gross amount receivable and the present value of the amounts receivable Is recognised as unearned finance 
Income. 

Gross receivables frorn '"'a nee leases 2015/16 2014/15 

- -- £ 

Lona Term Debtors 
Finance leases· gross receivables 2.,873,700 
less· Unearned finance Income (2.,248,2151 
less· Unsuaranteed residual value of property . 
Net Present Value 625,485 

Short Term Debtors 
Finance leases· sross receivables 46,350 
less -Unearned finance Income (45,8081 
less -Unguaranteed residual value of property . 
Net Present Value 542. 

Gross receivables from finance leases 
No later than 1 year 46,350 
later than 1 year and no later than 5 years 185,400 
later than 5 years 2,688,300 

Total Rf'OSS receivables I u2o,oso I 

less-Unearned future finance Income on finance leases I {2.294,0231 I 
less-Unguaranteed residual value of property I - I 

Net Investment In finance leases I 626027 I 

The net Investment In finance leases may be analysed as follows: 

£ 
1 No later than 1 year I 542 1 
later than 1 year and no later than 5 years I - I 
laterthan 5 vears I 625.485 I 

Total FOS5 receivables I 626 027 I 

The unguaranteed residual values of the assets leased under finance leases at the end of the year are estimated at £N'I. 

The accumulated allowance for uncollectable minimum lease payments receivable Is £Nil. 

No contingent rents were recosnised as receivable by the Council 

The Interest rate Inherent In the leases Is fixed at the contract date for the entire lease term. The averase Interest rate contracted Is approximately 
7.32%. 

-. 
. 
. 

. 
-
-. 

. 
-
-
. 

. 
-

-

. 

. 

. 

. 

£ 



b 'o,.minl Luses (Caundlas lessor) ______ _ 

The CountU, In "cord ante with IU statutO(V and discretionary responsibilities, leases out property and equipment under operating leases for the 
followlns purposes: 
• for the provision of community services, such as sporu f.ltllltles, tourism services and community centres 
·for economic development purposes to provide suitable affordable accommodation for smaillocat businesses 
• any other purposes 

Rentrat Income recognised In the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement In the current year amounts to £6,774,888. No contingent renu 
were recognised. 

The te,;ue contracu are all non-canceilabte and do not In dude an extension option. The lease terms are between 1 and 999 years. Future minimum 
lease Income Is set out below: 

I I 

I land !fill v.Hcles, Pllnt and land 8lld Vehlclel, Jltlnl 
lilldlnp !CI!IIP ment IIUIIdlr1p 8lld 

£ E £ £ 
Minimum teaM rentals receivable: 
No later than 1 year I 6.123 7401 . . . 
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years I 20,136,015 I . . . 
Later than 5 years I 394.168.195 I . I . 

-
-120 . .l27.:iSO 

The asseu leased by the Council to third parties are Included In the foilowlns catesorles of Property, Plant and Equipment with carrying values of: 

Cost 81,934,500 . . . 
Accumulated depredation and 
lm~lrmenu at 1 April . . . . 
Depreciation char&e for thevear . . . . 
tmpall'menu (500,000) . . . 
Revaluatlons 2.210 soo 

--·----- . -· 
83,645,000 -

-

fotl!l(d .1-:. I• Ht•e 

c IFIN'nce ...._ (Caundlas lessee) 

The Council has a number of asseu of land held by long term leases from 980 to 10,000 years. Rental Income Is between 1p to £32 per annum, If 
demanded. Rent Is not normally demanded on these properties and therefore future minimum lease paymenu are assumed to be nil. 
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The CouncU h~s ~cquired some office copiers and printers by enterlnalnto operatlna le~ses with typl~lllves of S years. The Council Is ~lso luslna a 
number of office bulldlnas with tease terms up to 17 years and vehktes with tease terms up to 4 years. 

The expenditure charsed to services In the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement durtns the year In relation to these teases was: 

I 

l 1.8ndand Vehicles, Plant and Unci and Vehldas, Planl 

.I 

8ulldlnp Equipment ~llcllnp and 
£ £ £ fi 

Minimum lease payments I 1,448,405 I 472,434 I . I . 
Contingent rentats I - I . I - I -
less: Sublease payments receivable I - I - I - I -

Tot411 I 1,448.405 I 472.4341 . I . 

No sub-lease pilyments or contlnsent rent payments were made or received. No sublease Income Is expected as ~11 assets held under oper~tlnslease 
asreemenu are used exclusively by the Council. 

The future minimum lease p~yments due under non-cancellable operatlnsle;ues In future ye~rs are set out below: 

2015/ 16 20 1'1/ IS 

£ £ £ ,. 
Minimum lease renbls payable: 
No later than 1 year 1349138 I 477,530 I . J . 
later than 1 year ilnd no later than 5 years 4 209 5811 297.675 I . I . 
later than S years 1992 9991 - I . I 

Tobl I 7,55t,7ta I 775205 I . I -
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Emproycc (osts Jnc1 Member AHow.lntcs 

StnffCosts 2015/16 2014/15 

£ 
~larleJ and Wa&eJ J 65,249,895 
Em~oyers NIC I 4,602,551 
Employers Superannuation I 12,569,541 

. : : 

The above staff costs do not Include the costs of the voluntary redundandes In 2015/16. These costs are disclosed separately In Table 4 of the 
Remuneration Report. 
In addition to the above, asency costs durlns the year amounted to £4,217,572. 

. 
-
-

The Council's current contribution rate to NILGOSC scheme Is 20%. AI the last actuarial valuation, dated 31 March 2013, the Fund's assets as a whole 
were sufficient to meet 91" of the liabilities accrued up to that date. 

Average Number of Employees- where FTE represents fulltlme equivalent employees 

--

AveraGe Nurnbcrof Employees 2015/16 2014/15 

FTE 
Parks 398 -
Environmental Services 809 -
Plannlna and Place 137 -
Hllhwavs and Transport Service - . 
Other 971 . 

---
1 a t.,. ttJum b.._. r 2.315 

Actual Number of [mployccs 2015/16 2014/15 

--- - --- -

t a t,; N iUl'tlcr - - 2,444 • 

On 1 April 2016, 71 employees transferred to Belfast Oty Council from Us burn & Castlereaah Oty Council, and 44 employees from the Plannlns Service, 
under the Reform of local Government. 

Scmor Employees' Remuncratoon 10!',/ IG 2014/15 

~ 

£50,001to £60,000 47 . 
£60,001to £70,000 12 -
£70.001to £8(!.000 9 -
£80 OOlto £90,0000 2 -
£90 001to £100,000 2 -
£100.001to £110,000 2 -
£120.001to £130,000 1 -

- --
Tottll Number 75 

-- -

Members' Allowt~nccs 2015/!6 2014/15 

£1 

£ £. 
Emglover Costs 221,946 
Basle allowance 849,617 
Mayor's & Deputy Mayor's Allowance 41,050 
Special ResgonslbUitv Allowances 103,749 
HI~ Sheriff's Allowance 6,249 
Travel 15,715 
Mllea&e 11.670 
SUbsistence 6,962 
PCSP AIIOWii'ICe 13,560 
Conferences and Courses 21,949 
Tele.~thone rental 4,580 
Miscellaneous Costs 2,267 
Severance Payments• 16,600 

--

Iota I 
---

1,31S,n·l 

• Severance payments shown above are made under the Local Government (Severance Payments to Councillors I Reaulatlons (NII2013 and are fully 
funded by the Northern Ireland Executive. 
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e Northern Ireland Ovll Service Pension Arransements 

As a result of Local Government Reform an 1st April 2015, staff transferred from Central Government to the Caundl are members of the Northern 
Ireland Civil Service Pension Scheme. 

The Northern Ireland Ovll Service Pension arranaernents are unfunded multi-employer defined benefit schemes but the Department of the Environment 
Is unable to Identify Its share of the underlylna assets and liabilities. The mast up to date actuarial valuation was carried aut as at 31 March 2012. This 
valuation Is then reviewed by the Scheme Actuary and updated to reflect current conditions and rolled forward to the repartlns date of the DFP 
Superannuation ;and Other Allowances Resource Accounts as at 31 March 2016. 

For 2015·16, employers' contributions of £271,269 were payable to the NI CS pension arranaements at one of four rates In the ranae 20.8" to 26.3" of 
pensionable pay, based on salary bands. The scheme's Actuary reviews employer contributions every four years fullowlns a full scheme valuation. A new 
scheme fundlns valuation based on data as at 31 March 2012 was completed by the Actuary durlna2015·16. This valuation was used to determine 
employer contribution rates for the Introduction of a new career averase earnlns scheme from April 2015. The contribution rates are set to meet the 
cost of the benefits accrulns durlns 2015-16 to be paid when the member retires, and not the benefits paid durlns this period to exlstlns pensioners. 

Employees can opt to open a partnership pension account, a stakeholder pension with an employer contribution. Employer's contributions of £2,838 
were paid to one or more of a panel of three appointed stakeholder pension providers. 

On 1st April 2015, Castlereash Boroush Coundl was transferred between Belfast Oty Council and Us burn Oty Coundl with staff transferrlns between 
uch New Coundl. The number of staff which transferred to Belfast Oty Cauncn that were active members of the NILGOS pension scheme Is outUned In 
Note 20 Retirement Benefits. The Impact on the pension scheme assets and liabilities as provled by our actuary AON Hewltt Is Included In Note 24 
Openln& Balance Sheet 

7 Other Operatlns EJrpendlture 

a Surplus/Deficit on Non-current Assets (excllnvestment Properties I 

Proceeds from sa!e 
carrylns amount of non-current assets I 
sold (excllnvestment Properties I 

b other Operatlnalncome/bpendlture 

I Income 

2015/ lfi 10 14/ l S 

£ £l 
(72,78511 . J 

198.655 I I 
125.870 

2015/16 2014/15 

- - - ----

Other Opcr~tm1: E•pcmlltiHC 2015/16 2014/15 

125,870 



a Flnanclns and Investment Into me and Ellpendlture 

a Interest Plllyable and Similar Chai'JIS 

Z:J!Silt. 101·1/i~ 

£ £1 
Le.u e/hlre purthase Interest - -
Banlt Interest - -
Loan Interest 1,844,895 -
Interest on funds 143,489 -

1988,384 -
b Interest and Investment lntome 

201>/!5 201~/15 

£ 
Bank Interest 207.232 -
Employee car loan Interest 7,054 -
NI HE Loan Interest receivable 410,341 -
Investment Income on Fund Boloncts 
Capital Fund . -
Repalrs & Renewals Fund . -
Other Funds 668 -
Other Investment Income . 

625,295 . 
c: Pensions Interest costs 

--

201)/16 10!~/:; 

L 

lNet Interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset} 3.287.000 J . 
3 287,000 

d Surplus/(Dtlflclt) on tradll'll open~tlons 

-- -- -

1~1S/!fl 20!~/:' 

£ 
)Income from trading -
I Elcpendlture . -
(Surplusi/Of:flclt for the year . . 

e Income, Ellpendlture and chanps in Fair Value of Investment Ptopl!rtles 

-

101~116 ?0!~/ 1' 

~Income/ .from Investment . . £ i 
Income Including rental Income (6,774,888) -
EJcpendlture 415,458 -
Oe.recognltlon In relation to amounu written off . 
Net Income from Investment properties (6.359,430) -
SUrplus/dellclt on sale of Investment Pnlpertles 
Proceeds from sale - -
CarrylnJ amount of Investment properties sold - -
(Surplus]/deflc/t on sole a/Investment Properties: . -

Chanaes In Fair Value of lnwstment Properties (1,790,500) -
(8,149.930} 
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fm;mc1ng .1nd ln\lcstmcnt Income ;mrl 

Expcnclllurc 101 S/IG 20 1-l/ 15 

Grass Elqlendlturw Gross InCome Net~ Gross Ellpencllc&n 
£ .£ £ £ 

lnt~rest Payable and Similar Charaes 1,988,384 - 1,988,384 - . . 
Interest and lnlle$tm~nt Income - 625,295 (625,2951 . - -
Pensions Interest cost 3,287,000 . 3,287,000 . . -
5urplus/(Deficltl on tradlns operations - . . . . -
Other Investment Income 415,458 6,774,888 (6,359,4301 -
Chanses In Fair Value of Investment 
Properties - 1,790,500 (1,790,5001 - -

-- -

'5690,842 9,1W.G8J 0~998411 · · · 

9 Talliltlon and Non SpecHlc Grant Income 

a Revenue Grants 

2015/16 2014/15 

(5,091,1621 

b Cilpltal Grants and Donated Assets ·Applied 

10!5/!G 10:4/1~ 

£ 
Gov~rnment & Other Grants ·Conditions 
met and applied In vear (40.284.2041 . 
Government & Other Grants • Transfer 
from receipts In advance (4,7601 . 
Donated Assets· Conditions met - -
Donated Assets ·Transfer from donated 
assets creditor - . 

(40,288,9641 

The above Cilpltalsrant amount Includes £20.5m from eu fundlns bodles. 

c Cilpltal Grants- Unapplied 

2015/16 

£ 
~~overnment & Other Grants- Conditions 
met and not a DOlled In year . -

!Other . -

d Dlstl'lct ~ti!S 

20!S/!6 20141!~ 

£ £t 
Currentyeu (143,116,4911 . 
Finalisation -current vear (774,1461 -
Transitional ReQef . -
Finalisation - previous year 50,371 . 

(143,840,2661 

-- -

2015/!6 IMSiii.iiiiiJ,i§tiUJfid@Miiiii·'''' 

{189,220,392) 



10 Acquired and Discontinued Opetatlons 

Local Government refDI'm was Implemented oolst April 2015, when 11 New Councils took over frDI'n the previous 26 Councils. As a result of reform a 
number of functloos which were previously delivered by NI Executive Oep;~rtments are now carried out by Local Councils. These lndude: 

Plannlns 
Local development plin functions 
Development control and enforcement 

ROlldS 
Off·street parking (except P"k and Ride) 

Local economic development 
Start a Business Progr;amme and Enterprise Shows 
Youth entrepreneurship 
Sodalentrepreneurshlp 
Investing for Women 
Neiahbourhood renewal funding relating to enterprises Initiatives 

loCI I tourism 
SmiQ-scale tourism accommoditlon development 
Provldlns business support lndudlns business start·up advice 
Provldlns advice to developers 011 tourism poll des and related Issues 

Herltap 
Control of ;~Iterations, extension and demolition of listed buildings 
Conservatloo ;~reil desl&nitlon and man;agement 
Usted build Ins enforcement notices 
Compensation where listed building consent has been revoked or modified 
lssulns of Build Ins Preservation Notices 
lssuln& notices to require Ursent Works to preserve a bulldlnB 
Community llsllns of buildings of special architectural or historic Interest 

Due to seosraphlcal boundary chanses from Loci I Government Reform, the dty boundary of Belf;ut Oty Coundl expanded to take In around 53,000 
additional residents, 21,000 households and 1,000 business premises. The new areas were formally parts of Usburn City Council, castlereilah Borou11h 
Council and North Down Borou11h Council. Belfast City Council has take over respooslblllty for over 177 assets with a net villue of £24.6m, located In the 
transferrin& areas of the city, which were previously held by Usburn and Castlereash councils and off-street car parks previously held by Department of 
Re&lonal Development. These ;assets are now manased by the services they've t r;ansferred Into. All of these assets and any assoclilted ll;abllltles, which 
tr;ansferred to Belfast Oty Council ool April 2015, are lnduded In Note 24 Open In& Bal;ance Sheet. 



Belfast Oty Coundl 
Notes to the Financial ~tements 
FOR 'AlE YEAR £NDEO Jl MARCH ZOl& 

11 Fllled Assets 

'•~n 



Net lOok Values 
0JIJn<eJ,Jt31r,;Jrch201G 99,337,153 352,058,106 1.t6.1 7,].j.j 253 59,101.069 2,811,002 528.155.227 .j,lll,978 8.1 , !20,000 170,022 1.6 75,000 6!8,.j].j,22J 

"'~~n 



ValuatloM 

The Council is not • ..,.,., of any rnatetlal chanaesln freehold and leasehold properties. The land and bulkllnJS useu held by the Coundl we"' otlalnally valued at 1 Aptll1997 by the Valuation and Lands Acency,ln acmnlance wllh the scatemonu of asset valuation pradlot 
and auk!anu noces ot the Royal Institute ot Chartered SUMtyon. The Coundlls operattna a roltlnc P"''"'mme for it's revaluation ot land and bulldlnJS wtth approximately 25" ot these belnc dlsaHtlv ntvalued by physlallrupedlon each ve• and the remainder belnc 

dlsautly "'valued by desktop e•en:tse. 
In the 2015/16 year all assets have b..,n valued as at 31 March 2016. The revaluotlon ..,.s calritd out by Land and Property Services Acency attlna as sub-contratton of the Valuatlons Office Acency. 
All property assets transfened to !he Council as a ... suit of the Reform of Local Govemmont, and after dasslllatlon under the "'Ievant accountlna polities of Belfast City CouncJI, werelnspocted and valued as at 31 March 2016 by Land and Property Setvk:es attlns as the 
sub<onir.ottor of Valuotlon Offla! Acency. These valuatlons we"' Included In the valuatlons of the Dlher coundl prop,.,rtles valued at that date, and their fina!QI etfects ""' Included In the Fb<td Assets Note above. 

capital Commitments 
A tocal of 16 capital a>ntracts wtth a value of over £100,000 we"' entered Into dutln1 the period With a total commlttmont value of £48,518,551. 

llfects o( Clla~~~S In Es14Ntes 

The"' were no rnaterfol chanaes In accountlna estimates for property, plane and equipment durfnathe period. 

llftpalrmetlt 

There we"' material Impairments to property and Investment property dutlna the period. Impairments over £500,000 ""' decalled below: 

Asset £ Asset class Reason 
Cllfton..WO Playinc Fields (748,11441 Bulldlftl Valuation 11 dept't<ialed rep!Kement mst 
GIRiwood Community Hub (2,164,7641 Bulldlnl Valuation at dept'tdated "'p!Kement c:ost 
Conns..,.ter Community Greenway (5,750,8931 Community Asset Valuation at nominal value at community osset use 

Roblnson Centre (3,963,9651 SUrplus Asset Impairment 
Smlthfteld Marlcet (500.0001 Investment Property Marlcet valuotlon 
SUm of rnaterfali1111)11rments CNer £500.000 (13.128.466) 
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Local Governtnentllefo<m 

Non-curnnt auets that we"' transfenwd to Belf;ut OIV Coundl on 1 April 2015 followtn1 Reform of Local Govemrnent wen. n!CGinlsed lnltlolly within the same auet dasslflaltlon as that of the tlansferor ot~anlsatlon. After lnltlalrecD~nltlon, all such auets were assessed 
and ,.doulfle<l where approprtote from that date In line with Belfast Oty Coundlac:countlnl policies. The ~monts In asset values after rec:t.sslflaltlon under the Coundl's policies are lndude<lln the file<l Assets Note abaw, and the flnandaleffec:ts are summarised 
below. 

Assets remulfle<l to tommunlty assets under the Council's aa:cuntln1 policies lndude<l (at net book values I from land £796,750; from buildlnp £957,320; from lnfl'lstructure assets £2,917; from p!.ntand machinery £126,876; and from surplus assets £10,000. it Is the 
coundl's policy to carry community assets at a value of £1, due to the restrictions on the use of such auets. These redaulllatlons the"'fore resulte<lin l~lrments to the assets to re<luce them each to £1 valuation. 

The Roblnson Cmtre leisure a!nln! was declared to be a surplus asset This required rec:t.sslflaltlon ol £350,000 from opentionalland and £4,413,348 from opentlonal bulklinp to surplus assets, and resulte<lln an lmpainnent of £4,344,070 net cl available revaluation 
1mounL 

The transfer of off-street car parkln1 functions required the recatOiorlsatlon of Smlthfleld Market car Park. previously held by Belfast OIV Coundlas an Investment property, to an operational asset wllh the Coundlas owner-oa:upler of the ar park. Thb resulte<lln 
rec:t.ulllatlon of £2,500,000 from Investment property to operational assets. 

Kent Street car Park transferred from the opentlon of the Department of ROIIOnal Development to the Council but ownership remains with the Depanment of Soda I Development; and as a result £182,893 was derecD~nised by the Council. 

There was a redasslflaltlon from surplus assets to operational t.nd of £1,500. 
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Belfast Oty Council 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016 

11 b lntanalble Assets 

lntanalble assets relate to landflll closure costs (net book value £NIL. aross cost before amortisation £16.7m) and purchased licensed software ;md related 
Implementation costs (net book value £370k, aross cost before amortisation £2,091k) 

c Investment Properties 

There were no additions In the year In relation to acquisitions and enhancements. 

&UIQI.iii§IJI§ 
£ 

Rental Income from Investment Activities I 6,774,888 I . 
Direct Operatlrc elCI)enses arlslnt from Investment properties I (415,4581 I . 
Net pln/lloss) I 6.359,430 I . 

d Heritage Assets 

Works of Art and Civic Items 
The Council's collection of Heritage Assets (Works of Art and Civic Items) Is reported In the Balance Sheet it lnsur~nce valuation which Is bued on market 
values, or If it Is not possible to obt.Jin .1 valu.Jtlon, they .1re measured at historic cost less depredation, amortls.Jtlon or Impairment losses. Insurance 
valuatlons are updated on a periodic buls. On the occasion thit no cost can be accurately measured for an Item, lt Is held on the balance sheet it the value of 
£1 for stewardship purposes. There are currently 160 of these Items recorded by Belfast City Council. 

Adclitrons of Hcnt~r.c Assets 201S/ l6 

' 
Boxer Statue · BUOYS Park Cathedral Gardens 29 858 
Forget Me Not Sculpture· City Cemetery 66,714 
Women In the City Stained Glass Window · City Hall 23.520 
SQanlsh Ovll War Stained Glass Window· Cltv Hall 18,983 
9 Stal~ Glass Windows · Clrt HaU 9 

Dlsposals In the financial year: 
There were no dlsposals of Heritage Assets during 2015/16. 

This total £139,084 Includes an amount of £96,571 which has transferred from PP&E Under Construction In Note 11 to operational Heritage Assets In year. 
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e Assets Held for Sale 

---
-

Ali.\.L' !\ ttt.~ ~d for ~.a :L.• ( qrr("'!t No·~ C"tnrt.~·lt Tot.11 

£ £ 
Cost or Valuation 
Balance as at 1 April 2015 1.500000 1.695.001 3.195 001 
Ad,;ustments between cost/value & depreciation/impairment - - -
Transferred from Non-Current Assets durlnJyear - - . 
Assets Held for Sale Donations - . . 

. . . 
Assets Held for Sale Revaluation Increases/decreases to Revaluation Reserve 
Revaluation Increases/decreases taken to Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of - (20,0001 (20,000) 
Services 
Assets Held for Sale lmo;llrment IJ Cost to Provision of Services . . 
DerecClJ!IItlon- Dlsoosals . . 
Oerec()lllltlon ·Other - - . 
Redllssifled from Current Assets Held for Sale to non current Assets Held for Sale - -
Transferred to Prooet!Y. Plant & Eauioment durln& year - (1 11 
Balance as at 31 Match 2016 . 1,500,000 1.675 000 3175 000 

lmoalrment 
S,lance as at 1 Aprii201S - - . 
AdJustments between cost/value & deoreciatlon/lmP<~Irrnent - - -
Impairment losses/reversals taken to Surplus or Oefldt on the Provision of - . 
Services 

Oerec:!l&l\ltlon • OI~S<IIs - . -
OerecOII'IItlon ·Other . -
Redasslfled from Current Assets Held for Sale to non current Assets Held for Sale - . 
Transferred to Preperty, Plant & EQuipment durinavear - . 
Balance liS at 31 Match 2016 . . . 
Net Book Value 

' 
Balance as at 31 Match 2016 _y_ooooo 1.675 000 3175 000 

The Coundllntends to dispose of property at Maysfleld. This has been approved by Commlnee and a buyer has been found. 

Th pin/loss on assets classified to held for sale and sold during the year W<IS £Mt.. 

Pqen 



F1lr Value Hierarchy for Surplus Assets 

Details of the Council's surplus assets and Information <~bout the fa' r value hierarchy as at 31 March 2016 are as follows: 

Surplus asets are valued by reference to m<~rket comparable evidence adjusted to location, state and condition and as such are valued uslna Level11nputs. 

Transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy 

There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 or 3 durlna the year. 

Hlshest and best use of surplus assets 

In estimating the fair value of the Council's surplus assets, the hlahest and best use of the assets Is their current use. 

Valuation Techniques 

There has been no change In the valuation techniques used during the year for surplus assets. 

The land value of the former Grove Primary School site Is measured at development level (previously this was measured at amenity level). There has 
been no chanae In the valuatlol1 techniques used durlnsthe year for all other surplus assets. 

Valuation Process for Surplus Assets 

The fa ir value of the Coundl's Surplus Assets Is measured ill market valuation as <1131 March 2016. All valuatlons are arrled out externally by Land and 
Property Services ilctln& as sub-contractors for Valuation Office Agency, ln accordance with the methodoloales and bases for estlmiltlon set out In the 
professional standards of the Royal Institution of Chilnered Surveyors. The Council's valuation experts work closely with floam:e officers report In& 
directly to the chief financial officer on a regular basis regard Ins a A v<~luatlon matters. 
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1 Fair Value Hierarchy for Investment Properties 

DetiiiS of the Council's Investment Properties and Information about the f01lr value hler01rchy as at 31 March 2016 are as follows 

-- -- -~--~-~~---~---- -·- -

Other Slr,nlfic;,nt Sl[;rllfLCJnt urmhscrv,1ble 

2015/16 RL'Cl:rnnr. f;11r v11luc CllH'lted Pr1ccs in <1C.t1vc moukct\ for ob')crvilhle m puts mputs Fan VJlue ;,s t~t 31st 

meosurcmcl\t5LI5111C HicntLCill iliiCtl (lcvcl1) (Lcvcl2) (Lcvcl3) Milrth 2016 
£ 

Commercial Units I 84120,000 I - I - I 14,120,000 I 

Total I 14,120,000 I - I - I 14,uoooo I 

Investment Properties are valued by rl!ference to market comparable evidence adjusted to location, state and condition and liS such 01re vilued using 
level11npuu. 

Tn~nsfets between levels of the fair value hler01rchy 

There were no tr01nsfers between li!VI!Is 1,2 or 3 durlns the year. 

Highest and best use of Investment properties 

In estimating the filr value of the Coundl's Investment Properties, the highest and best use of the properties Is their current use. 

Valuation Technlqul!s 

There has been no chanse In the valuation techniques used during thl! year for Investment Properties. 

Gains or losses arlsins from chanses In the fair value of the Investment property are recognised In Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services ­
Financing and Investment Income and E~penditure line. 

Valuation Process for Investment Properties 

The fair value of the Council's Investment Property Is measured at market valuation as at 31 March 2016. All valuitlons are carried out externally by land 
and Property Services actlns as the sub-contractor of Valuation Office A«ency, In 01ccordince with the methodolosles and b01ses for estimation set out In 
the professioN! st01ndards of the Royillnstltutlon of Chartered SUrvi!Yors. The Council's Viluatlon 9perts work closely with flnance officers reportlns 
directly to the chlef financial officer on a regular basis reaardlng all valu01tlon matters. 

12 Capital Expend lW re and Capitol I Flnanclns 

Ci1pltilt ExpendltLHC' 2015/16 201~/15 2013/14 
£ 

~In& C..llltal Flnandna ReQUirement I 32.930,809 I - I 

C..pitallnvestment 
Property, Planund Equipment 111 82,920,362 - -
Investment Prope"les - - -
lntanstble Assets 87.765 - -
Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute . - -
Investments - - -
Sources of Fln01nce 
Capital Receipts I - - I -
Government Granu and Other Contributions 9 I (40,288,964) - I -
Tr01nsfers from Earmarked Reserves I (3,531,353) - I -
SUms set aside from Revenue: I I I 
Direct Revenue Contributions I !7,038,so3) 1 - I -
Minimum Revenue Provision •• I I (2.886,41311 I . 

--- - ---- ~-

CIOSifl(! (i1pttal Fm.lncmt: ReqUirement 
-- 62,193,703 ·--

- ---

EKpl."''lliltiOII of Mov~ments m V ear 2015/16 2014/15 2013/14 
£ £ £ 

Increase In underlvlns need to borrow 29,262,894 - -
Assets ac;qulred under finance leases - . -
Assets acquired under PFIMP contracts - ~ 

----
-

lncrcasc/(<lcc rcast.!) m C;tp1tal F111ancmr. Rcqu1~cmcnt 29,262,894 -



-

Future [ilpltill Comm1tmcnts 

-- - --

uross Cost Gro nt Aid Net cost 
I £ 

129,748,776 43.356,872 86,391,904 

11,100,000 3,700,000 7.400 000 

Toto! - --- -- - -------- - 140,848,776 47,056,872 - 93,791,904 

Total expenditure of £30,947,496 has been Incurred against these proJects In the year ended 31 March 2016. 

--

2015/16 2014/15 

i 01o1-- - l%,50l . 

The cost of Inventories recognised as an expense and Included In 'services' ;~mounted to £607,481. 

- -

15 Dell tors 
Lon!~ Term Ochtors 201S/ l& 2C·l~ I ! S 

Government Oel)artments . . 
Other Councils . . 
Publ'c corooratlons ;~nd tradlna funds . -
Bodies extern;~! to ll!nerallQYemment - . 
Employee car loans 78.534 . 
Revenue Gr;~nts . - I 

CaPital Grants . -
Interest Receivable - . 
CaPital Debtors . . 
Loans and advances - -
Finance lease debtors 625.485 . 
Trade debtors 1.021.813 -
NIHEloans 4,465,360 . 
Other . 
Impairment of loans and receivables . -
Tot~t Lo~lr: Term Ochtors 

- ---~- 6,191,192 

b Short Term Debtors 2015/16 2014/15 

' Government Departments 994,830 . 
Other Coundls 69,696 . 
PubUc corr>eratlons and tradlna funds - -
Bodies external to aenerat aovemment - . 
NIHE loans . -
Employee car loans 56,039 . 
Revenue Grants 4,226,899 -
CaPital Grants 10,562,598 -
Interest Receivable - . 
Capital Debtors . . 
Value Added Tax 2,970.165 -
Prepavments 3,439.538 -
Finance lease debtors 542 -
Other 3,367.706 402 490 

Trade receivables 1,537,055 . 
Impairment loss - Trade receivables (485,767) . 
Total Short Term Debtors - -· -~ ---~- 26,739,301 40 2,490 

Total Debto" 32,930,493 402,490 



16 Borrowmr.s 

a Short Tor m Gorrow•ng 1015/16 20J.l/ l ; 

' ear 

Tot ill Short lcrm Borrowu11; ----- -·- · · • · 

b lone T('rm Borrowing 2015/16 1014/!S 

_!: 

Between 1 and 2 years 168 777 . 
Between 2 and S years 22.472,045 . 
Between Sand 10_ years 9,462,910 . 
In more than 10 years 2.657,m . 

-~ --- -
~ - -~- --~ - - -----

Government LOi'lnS Fund 34,761,509 

-

Total Borrow•nr. 3~.761,509 . 

Both the short· term and Ions-term borrowings have been analysed by maturity date. 

The total above relates to Government Loans Fund and Interest rates on Government loans ranee between 1.46% and 11.25". 

17 Crorl•tors 

I Short Term (rcthtors 2015/16 2014/15 2013/14 

' Government Departments 1,473,721 . -
Other Councils 5.633 . . 
Public corPOrations and trading funds - . . 
Bodies external to ll!neraiKovernment . . . 
Rates clawback . . . 
VAT . . . 
Remuneration due to employees 370.703 -
Accumulated Absences 1.302,728 . . 
Receipts In advance• 6,088,605 . . 
Trade creditors . . 
Other 26,177.418 402,490 -

- - --- -
- -

Tota l Short Term Crcdrtors 3 1
• 1 !~ 3CJ I "' I 'Jll 

"This amount Includes £633,931 of thlrd party Income. 

Council speclflc text 

b lonr. Term ( rcdJtors. - - 2015/16 2014/15 1013/14 

Other creditors falllna due after more than one Yl!lr £ £ ( 

Government Departments - - . 
Other Councils - . . 
Public corporations and trading funds . . 
Bodies external to 1eneral£0vernment . - -
Rates clawback - - -
Remuneration due to employees . . -
Accumulated Absences . . . 
Receipts In advance - . . 
Trade creditors . . -
Other 94,146 . . 

-

Iot.liiOng ,,:;m(i~_•rt.to r s -·--~---'-
- -

Y·l Jib 
. ~---. 

Total Crcd•tors 35,512,954 402,490 -

c Payment oflnvolces 

The Council's default target for paying Invoices where no other terms are agreed Is 30 days. (lt Is assumed that 30 days will be 30 
t.~lendar days and 10 days will be 10 worklns days). During the veu the Council paid 62,112 Invoices totalling £206,870,584. 

The Council pa1d 52,477 Invoices on 30 day terms and paid 44,484 Invoices on 10 day terms. 
The Council paid 9,635 Invoices outside of the 30 day terms. 
The Council has arrangements to calculate the payment Interval and for the year lt was 20 days. 
The Minister at the Department of Flnanace and Personnel had reduced the tar set for the payment of Invoices for centralsovernment 
departments to 10 workln1 days. This target Is not mandatory on local government but the Council endeavours to process Invoices as 
quickly as possible and will keep its performance under review. 



18 Provrs10t1S 

lncrC:'ISC' Ill 

a., lance as~~ provis1011 Urwscd ;unounts Interest cost ;o.nd/or d•~cnwlt B.11Jncc ·" ;lt 31 
Prov1srons 1 April 2015 durn1l! yclH Utrlrscn d1rrrnr. yc.11 reversed r;,te ch:tnr,cs M;mh 2016 

---~~~..-J~~ 
Landflll closure 7.605.248 

----

1S2 363 88,907 . 1.0211 7,669;733 
Claims Manument 1,536,521 291.163 229,875 - - 1,597,109 
Other3 - - - . - . 
Oth«• . . . . . . 

-- - --
Toto I 9.141,769 443,526 318,782 1,029 9,267,SU 

229.875 6,303 800 
88,907 1.029 2,963,742 

Total 9,141.769 443,526 318.782 - 1,029 9,267,542 

undf1Udo5ure 

The Council has reviewed the capping. gas extraction and Infrastructure cosu and discounted these accordln&fv whkh has resulted In a valuation of 
£7,669,733. The discount rates applied are based on National loans Fund borrowing rates. 

Calms Manacment 

A provision of £1,597,809 has been made In respect of public liability, employer's llablllty and other dalms/legal cases notlfled but not processed. Adequate 
Insurance arrangemenu are In place covering the Coundl's activities as recommended by the Council's Insurance Brokers. The relilled Insurance premiums 
paid are accounted for In the flnanclalstatemenu. At 31 March 2016, the total liability for legal cases notified but not processed amounted to an estimated 
maximum llablllty of £3,102,738. 



19 FIMnclallnstNments 

The Council has no materl;al exposure to any of the risk types Identified below In Its deallnss with Financial Instruments. 

Credit Risk 
Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and flnanclallnstltutlons, as well as credit exposures to the Council's customers. Customers are assessed, taking 
Into account their financial position, past experience ilnd other factors, with Individual credit limits belng set In accordance with Internal ratlnp In accordance 
with parameters set by the Council. The provision for bad and doubtful debts reflects the Council's assessment of the risk of non·payment by trade debtors 
and, as such, there Is no further additional estimated exposure to default and Inability to collect. 

Trade debtors,lnduslve of VAT, can be analysed by age as follows: 

"'r •(it• <1tdl ! Ut '> nc lu \J V( ' cf \'AT, .lfii1P 

ulilv~r-d b, .If:" .1:. folio .''" 

£ 
Less than three months I 2,434,909 
Three months to 1 year I 166.672 
More than one year l 1,021.813 

There Is no historical experience of default In relation to deposits with banks and other financial institutions. Therefore there Is no estimated exposure to risk 
of default. 

Uquldlty Risk 

tu the Council has ready access to borrowlnss from the Department of Finance and Personnel's Consolidated Fund, there Is no significant risk that it will be 
unable to raise finance to meet Its commitments under Financial Instruments. The maturity analysis of financial liabilities Is Included In notes 16 to 18. All 
trade and other payables are due for payment within one year. 

Market Risk 
Interest rate risk 

The Council is not exposed to significant risk In terms of Its exposure to Interest rate movements on Its borrowlnss as the majority of Its borrowlnas are at 
fixed rates for the life of the loans. Rates on Investments are subject to market movements. 

ForeiJn Exchange Risk 
The Council has no financial assets or llabllltles denominated In foreign currencies and thus has ng material exposure to loss arising from movements In 
exch;w~ge rates. 

Fair Value of Soft Loans and Government Loans 
The Council Is In recelpt of loans from the Department of Finance and Personnel that differ from the prevailing market rates. The fair value of these loans Is 
£41,852,305, analysed as follows. 

I £ 
Government loans I I 41.852,305 
Total I I 41.852,305 

The Council has made no loans to voluntary organisations and other external bodies at less than market rates (soft loans). 
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:ZO Retirement Benefits 

a Participation In the Northern Ireland Lotal Government Officers' Pension Fund. 

As part of the terms and conditions of employment of Its officers and other employees, the Councrl offers retirement benefits. Althoush these benefits will not 
actually be payable until employees retire, the Council has a commitment to make the payments that need to be disclosed at the time that employees earn 
their future entitlement. 

The Council partldpates In the Northern Ireland local Government Officers' Pension fund administered by the Northl!rn Ireland local Government Officers' 
Superannuation Committee. This Is a funded scheme, meanlns that the Counc;ll and employees pay contributions Into a fund, calculated at a level Intended to 
balance the pension's liabilities with Investment assets. 

b Transactions relatln& to retirement benefits -Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statem11nt Chilrsn: 

The Council recognises the cost of retirement benefits In the Cost of Services on Continuing Operations when they are earned by employ~~es, rather than when 
the benefits are eventually paid as pensions. 

However, the charse the Coundlls required to make against district rates Is based on the cash payable In the year, and the real cost of retirement benefits Is 
reversed out In the adjustments between accountlns basis & funding basis under regulations line, In the Movement on Reserves Statement. 

The followlng transactions have been made In the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and the adjustments between accounting basis & 
funding basis under resulatlons line, In the Movement on Reserves Statement during the year. 

Note 2015/16 2014/15 

f. 
Net cost of services; 
Current service cost 15,472,000 
Past service cost/(pln) 160,000 
Gains and losses on settlements or curtailments 912,000 
Net Olll!ratlnl e~lll!ndlture: ! 

Net Interest on net defined benefit Uabllity (asset) 3,287,000 

Total Post-employment Benefits charsed to the Surplus gr De licit on the 
Provision of Services 19.831.000 

Movement In Reserves Statement: 
Reversal of net charges made fer retirement benefits In accordance with IAS 19 
and the Code (19,831,000) 

Actual amount charRed aolnst the Reneral fund balance for Denslons In the vear: 
Employers' contributions payable to scheme 13,453,000 

--
Net cl1orr.e to the ComprehenSive lmomc ond bpcnd1turc 5t.ltcmcnt IG,378,00D) 

The service cost figures Include an allowance for administration expenses of £188,000. 
In addition to the recosnlsed gains and losses recognised In the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, actuarial pins of £23,654,000 were 
Included In other comprehensive Income and e~pendlture In the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The cumulative amount of actuarial 
salns and losses recosnlsed In other comprehensive Income and ~pendlture Is a loss of £21,978,000. 

Aerne;'I5Urcmcnts reCOfl1115Cd lrl Other ron1prchcn~IVI:! 

Income ;1nd Expcnd1turc Note 2015/16 2014/15 

£ 
Uabl]ty fjains/~osses} due to change In assumptions 21,369,000 
Uabllltv e~perlence gains/ (losses) arising In the vear 3,976,000 
Actuarial salns/(losses) on plan assets (1,691,000) 
Other- {If applicable) · -

Tot;.l flJms/{losscs} rcconmscd tn Other Compr~hcns1vc lncornc ;)r1d E)(pc~ld1ttnc B,654.000 

-

£ 

-
-
-

-

-

-

-

--" -
-
-
-



c Assets and llabUitles In relation ta retirement benefits 
Rcconc tl •.1ttorl of presen t value of the scheme ltahllittcs Note 2015/16 2014/IS 

£ £ 
&;lance as at 1 Allril 551.603,000 -
Current service cost 15,472 000 -
lntert!St cost 17,481,000 -
Contributions by members 4.186,000 -
Remeasurement (&alns) and losst!S: 

Actuarial ~talns/losst!S arising from chanJI!S In financial assumptions 121,369,000) -
Actuarial plns/losst!S arising from demographic changt!S - -
Actuarial ~ns/losst!S arlslna on llabllltft!S from I!!C~rlence (3,976,000) -
Other llf applicable! . . 

Past service cons/(plns) 160,000 . 
Losst!S/(aalnsl on curtailments . . 
Uabllltlt!S extlnJUished on settlements . . 
Estimated unfunded benefits paid (835,000) . 
Estimated benefits paid (14,312,000) . 

--- ----------- - - -
B~l.11lCC ~S ~I 31 M,1rch 548,410,000 

--

RcconclhatJOO of present v~1luc of the scheme a\sets Note 2015/16 2014/15 

£ £ 
&.lance as at 1 April 442.224,058 -
Interest Income 14.194,000 . 
Contributions by members 4,186,000 . 
Contributions bv emDiover 12,618,000 . 
Contributions In resDed of unfunded benefits 835,000 . 
Remeasurement pln/Uossl (1,691,000} . 
Assets distributed on settlements . . 
Unfunded benefits paid (835.000) . 
Benefits paid 114 312 000) -

- - - -

Bi11,111CC ;'IS cl1 31 March 457,219.0S8 -

Belfast Clty Council employs a bulldln& block approach In determlnlna the rate of return on Fund assets. Historical markets are studied and assets with hlsher 
volatility are assumed to aenerate hlsher returns consistent with widely accepted capital market principles. The assumed rate of return on each asset class Is 
calculated and the overall expected rate of return on assets Is derived by aweptlna the expected return for each asset class over the llctual asset allocation 
for the Fund at 31 March 2016. 

The actual return on scheme assets In the year was a aaln of £12,503,000. 

--

Fa1r Value of Plcl ll Assets 31/03/2016 31/03/2015 31/03/2014 

£ £ £ 
Equltv lnvt!Stments 328,740,461 . . 
Bonds 55,323,499 . . 
ProPI!rtY 60,352,908 . . 
Cash 10,516,037 . . 
Other 2,286,095 . . 

- - -- - ---- --------.- -- .. 
11 

• .. : · o·~ 

l!/01/1016 31/01/101> ll/Ol/20 !_. 

P~piS 
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d Scheme history 
- - - - -

AnolySIS of scl>cmc JHets ond lioblltttcs 31/03/2016 31/03/2015 31/03/201~ 

£ 
457,219.058 

(548,410,000 

Surplus/(rlcflclt) in the Scheme (91,190,942) -

Amount rCCD[;IWiCd HI Other ramprchCrl!.IVC lncornc 

;wd E:.:pemirttHC' 31/03/2016 31/03/2015 31/03/2014 

£ £ 
Actuarial salns/(Jossesl 23,654,000 . . 
ExJ~ected Return on Plan Assets . . 
lncreasef(decreaselln Irrecoverable surplus from membership fall and other 
factors . . . 

Remeasurements recognised In Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 23,654,000 . . 

Cumulative actuarial pins and (losses) as at 1 April 2015 _ - (45,632,0001 

Actuarial saln In year 23,654,000 

Cumulative actuarial Rains and losses as at 31 March 2016 (21.978,000) - -
History of experience pins and losses: 

Experience pins and (losses) on assets {1,691,000) - -
Experience Rains and [losses) on liabilities 3,976,000 . . 

The liabilities show the underlying commitments that the authority has In the Ions run to pay retirement benefits. The total liability of £91,190,942 has a 
substantial Impact on the net worth of the Council as recorded In the Balance Sheet, resulting In a reduction In net worth of 17 .8%. 

However, statutory arransements for funding the deficit mean that the financial position of the Council remains healthy. The dellclt on the Northern Ireland 
local Government Officers' Pension Fund will be made good by Increased contributions over the remalnlns working life of employees, assessed by the scheme 
actuary. 

Analysis of projected amount to be chilrsed to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for the year to 31 March 2017 

31/03/2017 31/03/2017 

£ 

Pro~ed current cost 15,041,000 84.0% 
Net Interest on the net defined benefit llabllltv (asset! 2,869,000 16.0% 
Past service cost - 0 .0% 
Gains and losses on settlements or curtailments . 0 .0% 

- -- - -- - -- -
17,!110~00 100 0% 

The total contributions expected to be made to the Northern Ireland Local Government Officers' Pension Fund by the council In the year to 31 March 2017 Is 
£13,n4,ooo. 

History of experience gains and losses 
The actuarial gains Ident ified as movements on the Pensions Reserve 2015/16 can be analysed Into the following categories, measured as a percentase of 
assets or liabilities at 31 March 2016. 



e Basis for estlmadnc assets anclllabUltles 

Uabllltles have been assessed on an actuarial basis ustns the projected unit credit method, an estimate of the pensions that wlll be payable In the future years 
dependent on assumptions about mortality rates, salary levels, etc. lhe Coundl's Fund llabllltles have been assessed by AON Hewltt, an Independent firm of 
actuaries, estimates for the Council Fund belns based on data pertalnlns to the latest full nluatlon of the scheme as at 31 March 2013. 

-

lOll!, lt'!lll t'•Pt'(lt'd r.ttt ot fl'':H~) ::lll ,lS~t?:'"> 111 ., l '• lot'! 1 l:J IS/!6 101·1/J!. 

Mortality assumptions: 
I Lonoevll)l at 65 cu"tnt ~nslontrs: Years 
Men 22.3 
Women 24.8 

Longevlf)l at 65 /or future pensioners: 
Men 24.5 
Women 27.2 

Inflation/Pension Increase Rate UO% 
Salary Increase Rate 330% 
Discount Rate 3.40% 
Peru! on accounts revaluation rate 1.80% 

Take-uD of DDtlon to convert annual Dtnslon Into retirement lump sum: 
Service to Aj)rll2009 75% 
Service DOSt Aorll 2009 75% 

Pension Assumptions Sensitivity Analysis 

lhe pension figures disclosed In these financial statements are sensitive to the assumptions used. 

lhe approximate Impact of chanslng key assumptions on the present nlue of the funded defined benefit obllsatlon as at 31 March 20161s set out below. 

In each case, only the assumption noted below Is altered; all other assumptions remain the same and are summarised In the disclosure above. 
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Funded Pension Scheme Benefits 

Dlstount Rate Assumption 

AdJustment to discount rate +O.l"p.a. ~.1"p.a. 

Present value or the total obligation 526,541,000 546,596,000 
"chanJte In the present value of the total obliptlon -1.90% 1.90% 
ProJected service cost 14,574,000 15,519,000 
Approximate" change In projected service cost -3.10% -3.20% 

Rate of General Increase In Salaries 

AdJustment to salary Increase rate +0.1"p.a. ~.l"p.a. 

Present value of the total obligation 539,459,000 533,521,000 
" change In the present value of the total obllsatlon 0.60% -o.Gcm 
ProJected service cost 15,041,000 15,041,000 
Approximate" change In projected service cost 0.00% 0.00% 

Rate of Increase to Pensions In Payment and Deferred Pension Assumption 

AdJustment to pension Increase rate +O.l"p.a. ~.1"p.a. 
Present value of the total obligation 543,582,000 529,465,000 
"chllnge In the present value of the total obligation 1.30% -1.30% 
Projected service cost 15.519.000 14,574,000 
Aooroxlmate "change In orolected service cost 3.20% -3.10% 

Post Retirement Mortality Assumption 

Adjustment to mortality age rating assumption• -1 Year +1 Year 
Present value of the total obligation 550,518,000 522,432,000 
% chan1e In the present value of the total obligation 2.60% -2.60% 
ProJected service cost 15,551.000 14,531,000 
Approximate" change In projected service cost 3.40% -3.40% 

• A ra!lns of+1 year means that members are assumed to follow the mortality pattern of the base tablellbove for an Individual that Is 1 year older than that. 

f MaJor catesories of plan assets as percentage of total plan assets 

31/03/2016 31/03/201 5 31/03/2014 

" " " Eaultv Investments 71.90% 
Government Bonds 0.00% 
CorPorate Bonds 12.10% 
PrOPertv 13.20% 
Cash 2.30% 
Other 0.50% 
Total 100.110% 

8 Nonhem Ireland Ovll Service Pension Arransements 

The Northern Ireland Civil Service Pension arrangements are unfunded multi-employer defined benefit schemes but the Council is unable to Identify Its share 
of the underlying assets and llabtlltles. The most up to date actuarial valuation was carried out as at 31 Much 2012. This valuation Is then reviewed by the 
Scheme Actuary and updated to reflect current conditions and rolled forward to the reporting date of the DFP Superannuation and Other Allowances 
Resource Accounts as at 31 March 2016. 

On 1st April 2015, castlereagh Borough Council was transferred between Belfast Oty Council and Us burn Oty Coundl with staff transferring between each 
New Council. The Actuary has advised that the New Councils will be Impacted by the movement of assets and llabtlltles. Total Impact for Belfast City Council 
Is a net llabtllty of £912,000 whlcll has been reflected In the opening balance sheet amounts as at 1 April 2015. 



h ~s Pension Fund 

Assl!ts and llabllltlH In relation to retirement benefits of tht! Gas Pension Fund 
---- - - - -

Rcconcllr,lteon of present vl'lhw of the 5chclllc hJb•l•t•cs.· Not~ 31/03/2016 31/03/2015 

£ £ 
Balance as at 1 APril 2,039,000 -
Current serv'ce cost . . 
Interest cost 58.000 -
Contributions by members - -
Remeasurement [pins) and losses: 

Actuarial olns/losses arising from changes In financial assumptions (26,000) -
Actuarial pins/losses arlsln1 from demographic chanKeS . . 
Actuarial gains/losses arising on liabilities from experience [31.0001 -
Other (If applicable) -

Past service costs/{plns) 
Losses/(aalnsl on curtailments - . 
Uabilltles extln1ulshed on settlements . -
Net benefits paid (346,000) -

- . 
Billancc .1s .1t 31 March 1.69.1,000 

-

R£1COJ1CIItiltl011 of present value of the scheme olSSCtS. Not~ 31/03/2016 31/03/2015 

£ £ 
Balance as at 1 April 1,973,000 
Interest Income 58,000 . 
Contributions bv members - -
Contributions by em plover 150,000 . I 

Contributions In respect of unfunded benefits . . 
Remeasurement galn!(loss) 150,0001 . 
Assets distributed on settlements . 
Net benefits paid {346,000) -

- -
- - - ---- -- -

8Jlance il'i tit 31 Mard1 1,785,000 

Not~ 31/03/2016 31/03/2015 

£ £ 
1785,000 

tlon 1,694,000 

Funded P!nslon Stherne Benefits-Gas Pension Fund Senslt!v!tv Ana!vsls 

Discount Rate Assumption 
Adjustment to discount rate I +O.l"p.a,( -O.l"p.a. 
Present value of the total obllptlon I 1,68s,ooo I 1,703,000 
" change In the present value of the total obligation I -0.50%1 0.50% 

Rate of Increase to Pensions In Payment and Deferred Pension Assumption, and rate of revaluation 
of pension accounts assumption 
Adjustment to pension Increase rate +0.1"p.a. -O.l"p.a. 
Present value of the total obllaatlon 1,703,000 1.685.000 
"change In the present value of the total obllptlon 0.50% -O.SO% 

Post Retirement Mortality Assumption 
Adjustment to mortalitv age rating ilssumptlon• -1 Yeilr +1 Year 
Present value of the total obligation 1.807,000 1,584,000 
" challfle In the present value of the total obllsatlon 6.70% -6.50% 
• A rating of +1 year means that members are ;~ssumed to follow the monallty pattern of the base table above for an Individual that Is 1 yur older then them. 
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I Major •,., Gas Pension Fund assets aslliiiili of totaiDiiln assets I I 

" " IEQultvl 0.~ 

1 Bonds 51.~ 

C~pc~rate l!l)nds O.()(m 
Property o.~ 

Cash 48.4~ 

Other 0.~ 

Total 100.~ 

I Mortality . 
I Members 11ed 85 at tdate Years 
I Men 6-5 
!Women 7.7 

I"'""UUflfl 11naease Rate p~ 

I Discount Rate 3.3~ 

Summary Net Assct/lr.1bol•ty rccor.mscd on the Balance Sheet 31/03/1016 31/03/2015 

£ 
Nonhern Ireland local Government Officer's Pension Fund (91,190,942) 
Gas Pension Fund 91,000 

Total Net Assct/Liabd•ty rccocnised on tile Do lame Sheet · · : ,i)•,c- 1 ' 

Gas Pension Fund 

The Gas Pension Fund Is malnUined to provide for future pension payments to the beneflclarles, the objective being to maintain a fund sufficient to provide 
all future anticipated payments. No contributions are currently being paid and there are no service members accruing funher beneflts. Members' beneflts 
are guaranteed by statute. Should the Fund's assets not be sufficient to provide all the beneflts, the residual liability for pension payments would fall on 
Belfast City Council. 

The current market value of the Fund at 31 March 20161s assessed by the Councils actuaries, Aon Hewltt and Is disclosed above. The Fund's Ananclal 
Statements outlined below do not take account of liabilities to pay pensions and other beneflts after 31 March 2016. 

At 31 March 2016 there were 38 penslonen left In the Gas Pensions Fund. 

INCOMf AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT 31 /03!10lG 3!/0l/20lS 

£ £ 
INCOME: 
Investment Income 21.064 20,741 

EXPENDITURE 

Pensions Paid (339,826) {353,789) 
Administration Expenses (5,675) (5,945) 

Surplus/(Deflclt) for the Year (324,4371 (338.993! 

NET ASSET MOVEMENTS 
Brought forwud balance at 01.04.2015 1,728,723 1,654,178 
Unreallsed gain at 01.04.2015 400,263 675,428 
Openln1 Value of Fund 2,128,986 2,329,606 

Add Contribution from Oty Council 150,000 
Add surplus/(deflclt) for the ye;u (324,437) (338,993) 
CHANGE IH MARKET VAlUES OF INVESTMENTS 
Realised aaln for year 
Unreatlsed aaln/(loss) for year (14,119) (11,626) 

Ooslns value of fund 1,790,430 2,128,9117 

FINANCED BY: 
UK Index Unked Investments 920,399 934,518 
Cash deposits and at bank 864,335 1,038,774 
Debtors 5 696 155,696 

1,790,430 2,128,987 
Bank Balance 0 0 
Creditors 0 0 
Clos•nr. v,1luc of fund 1,79(1 ~lO 2,11S.981 



21 
----

Oon.1tcd Assets Acc:ollnt Note 201 S/16 2014/15 

£ £ 
Open InK balance 410,000 0 

Add: new donated assets received (condition of use not 
met) 0 0 
Less: amounts released to the District Fund • 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account 0 0 

410,000 0 

Analysis of Don.1ted Assets Account 

The balance of the Donated Assets Account represents donations received that have yet to be recognised as Income, as they have conditions attached to 
them, which will require the donated assets to be returned, If conditions ue not met. The balances at the year end are as follows: 

-

Donate cl A<<cts Account Note 2015/16 2014/IS 

£ £ 
Bl1 Screen TV at Otv Hall I 400,000 0 
Animal Welfare Van I 10.000 0 

I 0 0 

-- -
410,000 0 

- ---

(:qllt;'ll Gr,"U\ts Rccc•ucd 111 Advilntc Note 2015/16 2014/15 

£ £ 
Open Ins balance 21.827. 0 

Add: new capital grants received In advance (condition of use not met) 335 938 0 

Leu: amounts released to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement {4,760) 0 

AN lysis of capital Grants Receipts In Advance lhllance 

The balance of Capital Grants Receipts In Advance represents arants received that have yet to be recoB"Ised as Income, as they have conditions attached to 
them, which will require the srant to be repaid, If conditions are not met. The balances at the year end are as follows: 

- ---

'.1,) '·' r,. .~ 1· • ,., ~ ': •·. u1 .'\ 1. 1'' ,. 'l::t' 201St:G 101~/ 1 S 

£ £ 
Whlteroclt Community Garden Allotments 483 
BSC 7 Alle\outes lenadoon 20295 
BSC Allevutes 01vls 33 080 
BSC Bikes lower Oldpark 76 716 
BSC Bikes lower Falls 76,716 0 
BSC Bikes Lower Shanklll 76,716 0 
BSC 26 Alley,ates lenadoon 68,999 0 

Z3 Contlnpncles 

The llfC21 Joint Committee has, with the approval of their Participant Coundls, entered Into a Contingent Uablllty Undertaklns with the blddlns consortium In 
the procurement for the Residential Waste Treatment Pro;ect. Payments made. If any, In accordance with this undertaklns will be funded by the Participant 
Councils. No further Information on this aareement can be disclosed due to the commercial sensitivity of the procurement process. 

Guaranteed Minimum Pension (GMP) Is a portion of pension that was accrued by Individuals who were contracted out of the State Second Pension prior to 6 
Aprlll997. Althoush the Government Intends that GMP should be equalised, at present it Is not clear how thls equalisation will be Implemented. The Impact 
of GMP on the liabilities Is uncertain and as such no allowance for GMP equansatlon has been made. 
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Belfast City Council 
Notes to the Financial Stllltements 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016 

24 Opening Balance Sheet Note as at 1st Aprll2015 

---

Eitilltllili!Oil of Tran~fcr~ a~ a Tr,1nsfNS from 
Belfast ( tly tnlcr COIH>Ctl Shadow result of ( entral £lalal\cc as at I 

(oul\ctl (DurlCII flou11clary Aprtll015 
balances GDvcrnrnenl 

change 

£ £ £ E 
Property Plant & Equipment 425,887,219 - . 16,380,640 7,068,537 449,336,396 
Heritaae Assets 3,257,665 . 717,243 . 3,974,908 
lnvi!Stment Properties 84,445,000 . . 384,500 . 84,829,500 
Intangible Assets 274,559 . . . . 274,559 
Assets Held for Sale 1,695,001 . . . . 1695,001 
Long Term Investments . . . . . . 
Investment In Associates and Joint Ventures . . . . . . 
Lon11 Term Debtors 7,707,676 - - - . 7,707,676 

~ ~ 

kur,c ·; •H! ,'\')~r · .• • :. ~ -~'' : • : -~(I 17~ ,·,~ .. 7 OGR,5H 5·17.8i!l.Cl·l0 

Short Term Investments - . . - . 
Inventories 288,677 . . - - 288,677 
Short Term Debtors 24,826,050 (402,490) 402,490 . 26,885 24,852,935 
cash and Cash Equivalents 45,677,256 . - . 461,014 46,138,270 
Assets Held for Sale 1,500,000 - . - - 1,500,000 

( l ii ·.HI "t- t.\~1 - ., ' .. :'t· l •.i.l. J ' t ·: 1 '-') ~ ·= .-- . 1 •0 ~K1,8~9 72.71~'.~82 

' 

Bank Overdraft . . . . -
Short Term Borrow1n11 3,073,373 - - 181,414 - 3,254,787 
Short Term Creditors 24,357,382 (402,490) 402,490 105,584 464,834 24,927800 ' 
Provisions 6,242,512 . - . 6,242,512 
Uabllltles In Disposal Groups . . . . - . 

CURil(~JT LIIIU LIT ItS ~ 1 h7 ' ~(,7 1) ·:: .: -· ) ! t~ 1 • I :...:t ., l 1,!! l J.:. 12!;,o .o 

Long Term Creditors . . . 94,146 . 94,146 
Provisions 2,899,257 . . . . 2,899,257 
Long Term Sorrowing 20,084,871 . 4,359,600 - 24,444,471 
Other Long Term Uabllltles 108,466,942 - - 912,000 . 109,378,942 
Capital Grants Receipts In Advance 21.827 - . . . 21,827 
Donated Assets Account 410,000 . . . . 410,000 

-- -

IOI!G HHI.1 UIIUILITif~ 1' I. . 82.!!07 1
, •.1 r / ~' U"l.~·Hl.tl'i3 

~-----------Nf T ~~~~l T~ ·l )' Q> n . o -· 11 ~~·~ -:' l . •. l.t>02 ·1-:ll,S'2·1.!80 

USABLE RESERVES 
capital Receipts Reserve 1,243,065 . . . . 1,243,065 
Capital Grants Unapplied Account . . - . . . 
Capital Fund 27,S89,083 . . . . 27,589,083 
Renewal and Repairs Fund . . . . -
Other Balances and Reserves 2,898 . . . . 2.898 
General Fund 22.027,605 . . . 23,06S 22,050,670 

TOT IlL US/lULl Hf SlRVf ~ l,l· s· ~.u 1 . ' 'O.X~S.l!o 

UNUSABLE RESERVES 
capltllll Adjustment Account 388,840,756 . . 8,446,625 7,068,537 404,355,918 
Financial Instruments Adjustment Account . . . . . . 
Revaluation Reserve 100,028,623 . . 4,295,014 . 104,323,637 
Available for Sale Flnancl~llnstruments Reserve . . . . - -
Pensions Reserve (108,466,942) . - (912,0001 . 1109,378,9421 
capital Receipts Deferred Account . . . . . . 
Accumulated Absences Account (1,262,149) . . . - (1,262,149) 
Landflll Resulatlons Reserve . . - . . . 
Provisions Discount Rate Reserve . . . . . . 

--

TQTIILUNUSI\Ill : Hf5H!Vb '7° 1•10,28R 11.8~q :- ... · .. x ~'7 \ 9K,03H.·16·l ------------------ -
NET WORTH <130,002,939 11,829,63Y 7,091,602 448.924,180 
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Belfast City Council 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARot 2016 

2S Other cash flow disclosures 
a Analysis of Adjustments to Surplus/Dellclt on the Provision of Services 

Ad).:stment to s :r~plus or ttcf c1t on the ~HOVtS on of scrv1CCS for om•cJsh 

movements 

DeQfedation 
Impairment & downward revaluatlons (&non-sale deretoiOitlonsl 
Amortisation (included with depredation above) 
lncrease)/Decrease In Stock 
lncreasei/Decrease In Debtors 

lncrease/ldecreasel In lml)alrtnent grovlslan for b<~d debts 
lncrease/(Decrease)ln Creditors 
lncreasef(Decrease) In Interest Creditors 

Payments to NILGOSC 
CarrylnJ amount of non-current <~ssets sold 
AICIWIP wrlnen off to Net Cost of Services 
Contributions to Other Reserves/Provisions 
Movement In value of Investment properties-Included above In Impairment & 
downward revaluatlons(& non-sale derecoJ!Iitlons) 
Amounts J)Osted to CIES from Donated Assets Account 

- -

AdJlJSt for ttcms tnc:ludcd m th(_) r1et ~urplus or dcftctt on the provrs1on of 

SCtVICCS th;tt iHC 111VCStHl(~ JJ1d fn1:1nc111g JCtiVI[ICS 

Purchase of short·term (not considered to be cash equivalents) and ronJ-term 
Investments (Includes lnvestml!nts In assoclates,)olnt ventures and 
subsidiaries) 
lf'roceeas wom snort-tenncnot constQereG to De casn equtvalentsJ<~nO tong· 
term Investments (Includes Investments In assocliltes, joint Vl!ntures and 
subsld!arles) 

Proceeds from the ule of PP&E.Investment property and lntanatble assets 
C..oltal arants Included In "Ta~eatlon & non-speclflc trant Income" 
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•J.ott•\ 2015/ 1 ~ ] J l4/1', 

£ £ 
11 11697 623 -
11 15 354 329 -. -

(7.8271 
1507.351) 

110.594 
10,915.332 -

- -
20 6,378.000 . 
11 198.655 . 
11 20.859 . 

(3,953.807) -
. . 

21 . . 
--

-10 106 ~~i 

t~m r\ ] u IS/ ! G 1:1 1~1 1~ 

£ £ 

. . 

- . 
(72 785) . 

(40.288.964} . 



b Cash and Cash Equivalents 

c 

d 

e 

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents Include cash on hand and In ~nk and short term deposits and Investments 
(considered to be cash equivalents!, net of outstandlns b;ank overdrafts. Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reportlns period as shown In the 
statement of cash flows can be reconciled to the related Items In the Balance Sheet as follows: 

1015/16 

£ 

Cash and Bank balances 5 705 507 

Short Term Deposits {considered to be Cash Equivalents) 26,000,000 

Short Term Investments (considered to be Cash 
Equivalents! . 
Bank Overdraft . 

The cash flows from operatlns activities Include: 
Interest received 

Interest paid 

- - - -

I J I ; L •••• I J'•~ • ~ t • I • '' ..... ' • ..,, . t" 

Purchase of PP&E Investment orooertv and lntan&lble assets 

Purchase of Short Term Investments (not considered to be cash equivalents) 
Loans transferred 1 Aorll 2015 
Other Payments for lnvestlnaActlvltles 

Proceeds from the sale of PP&E Investment orooertv and lntanalble assets 

Proceeds from Short Term Investments (not considered to be cash 
!equivalents) 
Proceeds from LDnaTerm Investments 
Capital Grants and Contributions Received 
Other Receipts from lnvestlnaActlvltles 

- -- - - - -
I"~C'l C~'\tlllow\, frorn lnvl.~'So~ •:1: Att .. :1('~ 

-- -

( J\.h 1 0\\1\ ft am f n.l·tc 11r. AL! VI:!'\ 

Cash Receipts from Short ;and LOOJ!Term Borrowlna 
Other Receipts from Rnandna Activities 
Cash payments fo r the reduction of the outstanding liability relating to a 
finance lease and on-Balance Sheet PFI contracts 

Repayment of Short and lonlt Term Borrowln£ 
Other payments for Anancln1 Activities 

Net Cash flow'l fr0tfl Fm;HlCtrlC Att~\.llttCS ----

201~!1 s 
£ 

. 

. 

. 

. 

£ 
206,460 

201S/1t 

£ 
81.478 125 

. 
14 5410141 ! 

LB44895 

172 7851 

. 

. 
f 40,288,964l 

18 J20 1';1 

2(Jl:;/IG 

£ 
11.000.000 

. 

. 
(3,937,749) 

. 

7,062.251 

2013/1 ~ 

£ 

. 

. 

. f 

. I 
I 

£ 

201~/IS 

£ 
. 

' 

. I 

. 

. 

. 

. 

. 

. 

. 

2014/15 

£ . 
. 

. 

. 

. 



2& Usable Reserves 
a capital Receipts Reserve 

These are capital retelpu which have oriBI~ted prlm;nl!y from thct sale of asseu which have not yet been usl!d to finance capital expenditure. 

The Cipltal Recelpu Resctrvl! Is c:redltl!d with the procel!ds from fixed asset sales and other monies deflnl!d by statute as capital recelpU. These are 
originally credited to the Comprehensive Income ;md Expenditure Statement as part of the gain/Ion on disposal and postl!d out via the Movement In 
Reserves Statement to the Cipltal RecelpU Reserve. The reserve Is written down when resources are applll!d to finance new capital expenditure or set aside 
to rl!duce an authority's capital financing requirement (or usl!d for other purposes permitted by statute). 

< ,, p .ta : R.ccc pt; Rcic, ~~, c .... H /01Jl,; xr, ll/Ol/20!; 

£ £ 
At1Aprll 1243 065 . 
Movement 
Transfers between statutory & other reserves & the General Fund 

. 
Olsgosal of Non Current Aueu/ Caotul Sales 31125 21l.»t . 
Cipital Retelpu used to finance apital expenditure 3 12 . . 
Difference between finance and other casu and Income cakulated on an 
accounting basis and flnance costs calculatl!d In accordance with statutory 
requlremenu (4&.350) . 
. Othtr. MowmMI'l 4&,350 . 

- - -- - -

At11 ~hrc h !,](, J )j;9 

b capital Grants Unapplied account 

Where a capital grant or contribution (or part thereof) has been retosnlsed as Income In the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, but the 
expenditure to be flnancl!d from that grant or contribution has not been lncurrl!d at the Balance Shl!l!t date, the grant or contribution shall be transferred to 
the Capital Grants Unapplll!d Account (within the usable reserves section of the balance sheet). reflecting IU status as a apltal resource available to finance 
expendlture. This transfer Is reportctd In the Movement In Reserves Statement. 

When, at a future date, the expenditure to be financed from thct srant or contribution Is lncurrl!d, the srant or contribution (or part thereof) shall be 
transferred from the Cipltal Granu Unapplied Account to the Capital Adjustment Account, reflecting the ippllatlon of apltal resources to finance 
expenditure. This transfer Is ilso reported In the Movement In Reserves Statement or In the notes to the accounu. 

The Council retelves capital granu from various fund Ins bodies when the expenditure has been Incurred and a apltal grant claim Is submltted. 

- ---

(JpltJI GrJnts 1Jn,1ppllcd Jccount fJ ' 11 " 31/03/2016 31/03/2015 

£ £ 
AtlAprll . -
Movement 
Unapplll!d Clllital Granu retelvl!d In vear - . 
Unapplll!d Capital Grants transferred to CAA In year . . 

--
- -

At31 March 

,..,s 



c capital F"nd 

This fund was establish~ "nder section 56 of the local Government Act (NI) 1972, however this section of the act was repeal~ under the Local 

Government Finance Act (Nothern lreland)2011. The amo"nts in this fund were separat~ Into separate funds durlnglS/16 as o"tlin~ below. 

f.l p loll f "I !Cl Note.., 31/03/2016 31/03/2015 

£ £ 
Atl~l!!il 27,589,083 -
Transfers between statutory & other reserves & the General f"nd 3b 1,418.027 -
Ananclnl from local Investment Fund 12 (31,354} 

Transfers between tallital F"nd & CAA to finance CaDital EJ<oendlt"re 1l (3,500,000) -
- - --

25,475,756 

This amount Is regresent~ by the foliowinl funds: 

£ £, 
local Investment F"nd 5,700,837 -

' Belfast Investment Fund 4.919 
City Centre Investment Fund 18,770,000 -
Social Outcomes Fund 1,000,000 -
At 31 MJrch 25,475,756 

The above funds are earmark~ for the followtns purposes: 

Ci ty Centre Investment Fund (CCIF)ls a fund to support the Belfast City Centre Reseneratlon Investment Plans. The propos~ Investment principles for the 

CCif are as follows: 

-the project should make a stsnl flcant Impact on the City Centre economy In terms of "sross value added" and job creation 

- the project should make positive and net contribution to the business rates Income received by Belfast City Co"ncll 

The balance on the CCIF at year end 31 March 2016 is £18,770,000. 

Social O"tcomes Fund Is set up to support City Centre projects which mtsht not generate a direct financial return but which would enhance the overall City 

Centre offer and support the attraction of Investment Into the City Centre. The balance on this fund as at 31 March 2016 Is £1,000,00. 

Local Investment Fund (LIF) is a key part of the Investment Prosramme that provides funding for smaller initiatives focuslns on physical work on buildings or 

facilities within communities. The balance on this fund as at 31 March 2016 is £5,700,837. 

There is a balance of £4,919 on the Belfast Investment Fund at yeu end 31 March 2016 as the majority of this fund was transferred to CC IF and llF during 

the year. 

d Leisure Mobinsatlan Fund 

This fund was establish~ under section 56 of the Local Government Act (NI) 1972, however this section of the act was repealed under the local 

Government Finance Act (Nothern lreland)2011. 

Le1~tHe Mablltsiltlon Fund Notes 31/03/2016 3!/03/ 1015 

£ 
At 1 AJ)rll -
Transfers between statutory & other reserves & the General Fund 2,000,000 
Transfl!fs between Renewal & Repair Fund & CAA to finance Capital 

E~pendlture 12 -
--------- ---- - ·---- --

At 31 Morch 2,000,000 

The leisure Mobilisation Fund Is a £2m fund to support the Leisure Transformation Programme. This fund will cover programme level cosu includins 

communications, engasement and procurement cosu. 

£ . 
-

- I 



-------------

e Other Balances & Reserves 

Other Balances & Reserves Notes 31/03/2016 3!/03/2015 

£ £ 
AtlAorll 2,898 . 
Transfers between statutory & other reserves & the General Fund 200,668 -
Transfers between Capital Fund/Renewal & Repair Fund & CAA to finance 
capital expenditure 12 -
All! M.1:d: 203,566 

This reserve Is used to equalise (smooth} the cost of elections by building up a fund to cover the costs of future elections by making contributions, as and 
when required, to the reserve. 

f General Fund 

This reserve shows the accounting cost In the year of providing services In accordance with generally accepted accounting practices, rather than the amount 
to be funded from District Rates. Councils raise rates to cover expenditure In accordance with regulations; this may be different from the accounting cost. 
The taxation position Is shown In the Movement In Reserves Statement 

Gcncr,;, l t tmd Notes 3 1/03/10! G 31/0J/201 s 
£ 

AtlAJ!rU 22.050 670 
ADdled Camtal Grants 3, 22, 25 (40,288.964} 

Una Pill led Cagital Grants received In year -
Direct Revenue Flnanclna 3 12 (7,038,503} 
Deoreciatlon and lmcalrment adlustment 3 27,072.g11 
Statu tort Provision for flnanclnl Cacitallnvestment 3 12 886 413} 
Net Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute 

312 . 
Surl)lus/(Delitit) on the Provision of Services CIES 17 080 585 
Transfers between Statutory and Other Reserves and the General Fund 

13 618,6951 
Net movements on Pension Reserve 3. 20 6 378 000 
Disposal of Flxed Assets/capital Sales 3. 11. 25 125 870 
Difference between finance and other costs and Income calculated on an 
accounting basis and finance costs calculated in accordance with statutory 
requirements 

40,580 
Other Movements 265,293 

- - -

AI ll r,l.,:h 
-- ------------ --- -- -- - -- -- -

B.lS1,2l4 

This fund represents the surplus of income over expenditure. lt can be used to supplement income and unexpected expenditure In future years. Of the 
£19,181,234,£6,317,810 relates to expenditure committed at the year end. 

£ . 
. 
. . 
~ 

-
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26 Unusable Reserves 
1 Capital Adjustment Account 

The Capital Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arisinB from the different arrangements for accounting for the consumption of non-current 
assets and for the acquisition, construction or enhancement of those assets under statutory provisions. 

The Account Is debited with the cost of acquisition, construction or enhancement as depreciation, impairment losses and amortisations are charsed to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, with reconciling postinBS from the Revaluation Reserve to convert fair value flsures to an historic cost 
basis. 

The Account contains accumulated gains and losses on Investment Properties and gains recosnised on donated assets that have yet to be consumed by the 
Council. 

The Account also contains revaluation sains accumulated on Property, Plant and Equipment before 1 April 2007, the date that the Revaluation Reserve was 
created to hold such sains. 

C.:1p1tlll AdJustment Arcaunt N CIL'"lo Ja/01/WIG HIOI/) tl!S 

£ 
At1April 404 355 918 
Applied Capltal Grants 3. 22. 25 40,288 964 
Unapplied Capltal Grants transferred to CAA in year -
Direct Revenue Flnancina 3,12 7.038,503 . 
Deorecliltion & lmcairment adiustment 11 127.072.811) . 
Statutorv Provision for financlnB Cal!ltallnvestment 3 2,886,413 . 
Net Revenue l!llpenditure funded from Cilpltal under statute 3,12 . . 
OisDOsal of Fl•ed Assets/ Ci!Dital Sales 311 1198 6551_. . 
Capital Receipts used to finance capital expenditure 3.12 - . 
Other Movements 3.124.974 . 
Transfers between Capital Fund/Renewal & Repair Fund & CAA to finance 
capltall!llc:enditure 12 3,500000 . 

- -- - --- -
f\t 1! f._• .W f ~I ~ ·, , • ,' 1 ·,I.Lt 

h Flnanclallnstr\lments Adjustment Account 

FUl iHtCr ;-11 lnstrumcnts Adju~tmcnt Account Notes 31/03/2016 31/0)/]Ql ; 

£ £ 
At 1Aprll - -
Difference between finance and other costs and income calculated on an 3 
accounting basis and finance costs calculated In accordance with statutory 
requirements . 

- - --- --
•"'-l =~ r.; ,V, .;---------------· --· ---

The Council has no transactions that would require use of this account. 



1 Revaluation Reserve 

The Revaluation Reserve contains the gains made by the Coundl arising from Increases in the value of Its Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible 
Assets. The reserve Is reduced when assets with accumulated gains are: 

• revalued downwards or Impaired and the salns are lost 
• used In the provision of services and the sa Ins are consumed throush depreciation, or 
· disposed of and the salns are realised. 

The reserve contains only revaluation gains accumulated since 1 April 2007, the date the reserve was created. Accumulated gains arising before that date 
are consolidated Into the balance on the Capital Adjustment Account. 

The purpose of this account Is to build up a balance based on the revaluation (upwards or downwards) of Individual a55ets. All such revaluatlons (e><cludlng 
Impairment losses that have been debited to Surplus/(Defidt) on the Provision of Services In the) are mirrored In Other Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure. lt Is a fundamental principle of this account that it never becomes negative. If an asset was held at current value when derecognlsed, the 
balance held on the Revaluation Reserve Is written off to the capital Adjustment Account. 

Rev <I ruat10r1 Reserve Notes 31/03/2016 31/03/2015 

£ £ 
At1Aprll I 104.323,.637 . 
Revaluation & Impairment I 11 22.566.358 . 
Other Movements I (3,0727nl . 

- - -- -----
At 31 Morch 123,817,218 

Available for Sale Fln;mclallnstruments Reserve 

The Coundl has no transactions that would require use of this account. 

Avo,loblc for Sole FillOilCIJilnstruments Reserve Notes 31/03/2016 31/03/2015 

£ £ 

11,21 

- - - --- - --

At 31 Mor<h - - -

k Pension Reserve 

Pcn5(0rl Reserve Notes 31/03/2016 31/03/2015 

IAt 1Atril 1109.378.9421 . 
I Net ; on Pension Reserve 3, 20 1<;4101innrll . 

1& 20 ~~ O:~A nnn . 
I Gas pensions 91.000 



I Deferred Capltill Receipts Account 

The Deferred Capital Receipts Account records capital advances receivable where an amount equal to the advance Is Included as a deferred capital receipt. 
These amounts are written down each year by the amount of capital debt repaid to the Council in that year. The Council has no transactions that would 
require use of this account. 

Notes 

I 

m Accumulated Absences Account 

The Accumulated Absences Account absorbs the differences that would otherwise arise on the General fund balance rrom accru'ns for compensated 
absences earned but not taken In the year e.s. staff annual leave entitlement carried forw;~rd at the end or the financial year. Statutory arrangements are 
expected to require that the Impact on the General Fund Is neutralised by transfers to or rrom this Accumulated Absences Account 

. . I I • 

£ £ 
' At1Aprlt {1,262,148) . 
Difference between finance and other costs and Income calculated on an 
accounting basis and finance costs calculated In accordance with statutory 

I 
requirements (40,580) . 

- --
.Ht 31 ~~'·~·,"" (1.302,728) 
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27 Slanlflcant Tradlns Operations 

The Council considers a tradtns operation e~lsts where the service it provides Is competitive I.e. the user always has the choice to use an alternative supplier 
to the Council and the Council charses the user on a basis other that a stralshtforward recharse of the Council's costs In supplying the service. The Council 
uses a variety of char sins mechanisms such as quoted lump sums, ll~ed periodical charses or rates, or a combination of these. 

In deciding whether a trading operation Is slsnificant the Council takes both financial and non·flnandal criteria into account. 

Anandal criteria taken into account in decidins whether tradinB operations are sisnlflcant to the Council are: 

·the masnltude of each Individual trading operation's turnover when compared with the Council's net revenue budget 

• the risk of financial loss the Council may be e~posed to in providing the service to the user. 

Non· financial criteria taken Into account In deciding whether tradins operations are slsnlficant to the Coundl are: 

• the importance of each Individual tradins operation to demonstratins the achievement of Council tar sets and Jmprovlns performance. 

• the exposure of the Council to service reputatlonalloss risk by providlns the service 

·whether the provision of the service Is likely to be of interest to the Council's key stakeholders and their needs. 

In applying the aforementioned criteria, the Council considers the letting of industrial estates to be a slsniflcanttradins operlltlon. 

These sisniflcant trading operations form part of Note 8d to these financial statements. 

28 Alency Servkes 

The Coundl had previously disclosed transactions relating to Peace Ill which finished In the year ended 31 March 2015. 



29 Related Party Transactions 

A Related Party Transactlon Is a transfer of resources or obligations between related parties, regardless of whether a price Is charged. Related Party 
Transaction exclude transactions with any other entity that Is a related party solely because of Its economic dependence on the Council or the Government 
of which it forms part. A related party Is one thilt has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant lnHuence over the other party !n making 
financial and operating decisions. This Includes cases where the related party entity and another entity are subject to common control but excludes 
providers of finance In the course of their normal business with the Council and Trade Unions In the course of their normal dealings with the Council. In 
addition where the relationship with the Council and the entity Is solely that of an Agency {see note 28) these are not deemed to be Related Party 
Transactions. 

Transactions with related parties not disclosed elsewhere In these financial statements are set out below; 

Councillors have direct control over the Council's financial and operating policies. In the 2015/16 flnanclal year the Councll commissioned £1,932,703 of 
works and services from Visit Belfast In which Councillors have an Interest. The Council entered Into these contracts In full compliance with the Council's 
standing orders and codes of conduct. 

The Council also paid grants of £1,241,436 to a number of org;mlsatlons In which Councillors and Council officers had an Interest. These grants were made 
with proper consideration of declaration of Interests. 

During 2015/16 the Council had expenditure of £76,909 to other Councils and Income received of £623,390 from other Councils, of which £69,696 {Note 
15b) was outstanding at 31 March 2016. These amounts mainly related to services provided. 

29.1 Payments to Community Groups 

Belfast Oty Councll made payments to the following Community Groups that have Councillors as part of their committee structure; 

East Belfast Partnership Board 
North Belfast Partnership Board 
South Belfast Partnership Board 
West Belfast Partnership Board 

Total 

29.2 Joint Committees 

Councillors 2015/16 

8 
6 
7 
2 

Belfast Oty Council made payments to the following Joint Committees; 

Councillors 2015/16 

ARC2.1 3 

153,411 
140 

4,500 
460 

158,511 

9,181,517 

The origins of arc21 can be traced back to June 1999, when a small number of Council representatives agreed that a joint approach was the best way to 
deliver an effective waste management strategy for the region. By 2000, 11 Councils had Joined together from the Eastern Region Waste Management 
group, which was eventually renamed arc21. 

At present arc21 has successfully been awarded and Is managing waste management contracts on behalf of Councils with a value In the region of £200m. 
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29.3 Other Orpnlsatlons 

29.4 

Belfast City Council made payments to the following organisations that have Councillors as part of their committf!f! structure; 

Countlllors 2015/16 

Association of Port Health Authorities 1 1,200 
Belfast City Centre Mam•sement Board 2 346,339 
Belfast City Muathon Limited 1 31,440 

Belfast Harbour Commissioners 4 130,663 

Belfast Hills Partnership 1 36,900 

Ulster Orchestra Society Umlted 1 324,942 

Cathedral Quarter Trust 2 29,010 

Concorde Community Centre Committee 2 500 
Dee Street Community Centre Committee 6 440 
Duncalrn Community Centre Committee 4 600 
Grand Opera House Trust 1 35,000 
Greater ShankiU P'shlp Board 6 46,429 
Groundwork NI 11,968 
Hlghfleld Community Centre Committee 2 1,200 

Horn Drive Community Centre Committee 2 600 
lnverary Community Centre Committee 6 707 
Knocknagoney Community Centre Commlttf!f! 6 2,110 
Ugonlel Community Centre Committee 2 600 
Unenhall Ubrary Board 1 36,218 

Local Strategic Partnership on Travellers' Issues 2 500 
Lyric Theatre Education Advisory Board 2 52,360 
Markets Community Centre Committee 3 546 
Nitlonal Association of Councillors B 3,560 

NI Amenity Coundl 1 2,330 
NI Housing Council 1 44,892 
NI local Government Association 10 84,070 
North Quf!f!n Street Community Centre Committee 3 600 
So m me Association 3 14,712 

Vlslt Belfast 4 1,932,703 

Woodvale Community Centre Committee 2 1,000 

3,174,139 

Active Belfast Limited 

Belfast City Council with Active Belfast Umlted entered Into an agreement with GLL for the provision of leisure services. These financial statements Include 

e~penses of £8,192,326 for the provision of these services In the year ended 31 March 2016. 

29.5 Tall Ships 

Bt!lfast City Council made payments totallins £2,073,610 to Tall Ships Umited In the year ended 31 March 2016. Tall Ships Umlted Is a company set up to 

orsanlse and manage the Tall Ships 2016 event. During the same period the the Council recognised £1,023,056 of Grant and Sponsorship Income from the 

event. 

29.6 Car loans ta Council Officers 

The Council makes car loans available to employees who are deslsnated essential car users. 

The total amount outstandlns In respect of car loans to deslsnated employees as at 31 March 2016 was £134,573. 

30 Events after the Balance Sheet date 

In September 2015 the Councll save permission to create a Council owned company to operate the Belfast Waterfront and Ulster Halls. Responsibility for 

managing the operations of the Waterfront and Ulster Halls was transferred to the newfy formed Belfast Waterfront and Ulster Hallltd (BWUHI company 
from 1 April 2016. BWUH Is worklns towards the delivery of annual operations savings to be re' nvested back to finance the capital e~pendlture Incurred on 
the mens ion. 

Date of authorisation for Issue 

The Chief Financial Officer authorised these financial statements for Issue on.:l.september 2016. 
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